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Aspris Holdeo Limited
Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022

The Directors present their strategic report of the period from 28 July 2021 to 31 August 2022,

Throughout the document, references to the “Company” refer {o Aspris Ioldco Limited. References fo the “Group”
refer to Aspris Holdeo Limited and jts subsidiaries. All amounts are presented in GBP £m, unless otherwise stated.

Principal activity
‘The principal activity of the company is (o act as an investment holding company,

The Group is a leading provider of specialist education and care services to young people in the UK. Hducating and
caring for a wide specirum of specialist education and memal healtheare needs, including autism, leaming difficultics,
social, emotional and mental health conditions {SEMEH). 1n addition, the Group provides specialist education and
mental health services to young people and adults respectively across the Middle East. The Group operates via two
primary divisions:

¢ The UK divisions provide eduecation and residential care and assessment for children with specialist
emotional and behavioural difficulties or autistic spectrum «disorders.

+ The Middle East divisions provide education to young peopie in the UAE, and mental healthcare and
wellbeing services to adults and young people in UAE and KSA.

Business Review
Development of the business

The Company was incorporated on the 28 July 2021, and on the 31 August 2021 acquired 100% of the sharcholding
of Aspris Children’s Services Limited (“*ACSL™) {previously named Priory Education Services Limited) through the
100% owned subsidiary Aspris Bidco Limited. These financial statements represent the results of the activities of the
Company since incorpotation, the aclivities of the Aspris group since the date of acquisition and the subsequent
acquisitions and disposals described below. Prior to the acquisition of ACSL the Group did not have any trading or
operations and sa the metrics quoted beiow as part of the ‘Performance of the Business” section are for the twelve
months ending 31st August 2022,

On 28 Junuary 2022 the wholly owned ACSL purchased 100% of the sharcholding in SC Topco Limited, From this
dale the consolidated results and activities of SC Topeo Limited (‘Sandcastle Care) are represented in these financial
statements.

On 31 March 2022 ACSL acquired 130% of the sharcholding in Hollyblue Healthcare (Arden) limited, iatterly
renarmed Aspris {Arden) Limited. From this date the results and activities of this acquired entity arc represented in
these financial statements. Please see note 17 to the financial statements for additional information on the sbove
business combinations completed during the peried.

In addition to the Group’s primary focus of providing high quality education and care to all those within its sesvices,
the Group has also been focused on the successful completion of the foliowing key developments:

*  Separation from the Priory Group of companies. Whilst the operations of ACSL were largely autonomous
from those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the recipient of central support services provided to it by
the Priory Group. These services continued under & transitional services arrangement agreed at the time of
the Group’s acquisition of ACSL. This transitional stage included the implementation of Aspris® own
standalone systems and suppost infrastructure, the process of which was completed by 1= January 2023, with
all services received under this transitional arrangement ceased to be provided from that date.



Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Business Review (eontinued

Development of the business (continued)

*

Acquisltion and inlegration of Sundeasie Cave into the Aspris Group, Sandcastle Care provides residential
care places for over 100 young peopte, primarily in the North West of the UK. These services are similar in
nature to those alveady provided by the Group. The Integration and incorporation of this business into the
Group has been a focus for members of the management team during the period.

Review of Group strategy and long-term plan. Following the successful separation from Priory Group, the
Group has undertaken a broad review of the key sirategic direction and objectives of the business, The
completion of this process provides the overacching framework within whick the business is managed and
directed by the Board and senior management.

Continued expansion of our Middle East operations. Since establishing a presence in the UAE in 2017,
ACSL has steadily grown the provision of services {n the region to cater for the education and care needs of
both young people and adults, including geographic expansion into KSA. Whilst the Middle East division
remains small relative to the primary UK operations (please refer 10 note 4 lo the financial staiements for
the split of revenue for the period ending 31 August 2022), the region represents a central part of the
Group’s development strategy.

Performance of the Business

The key

financial and non-financial performance indicators during the period were as follows:

Key KPIs 2022
Turnover 7 - £179.2m
Operaling profit before Impairment losses and Exceptional costs £23.1m
Quality 83.2%
Capacity 1,910
Occupancy 1,660
QOccupancy % 86.9%
Annual Growth in Middle East patient appointments 51.1%
Notes:

1. Operating profit measure of £23. 1m i5 equal 1o the Group's Operating toss £4.7m stated before Exceptional costs of £7.8m, Impairment
tosses of £19.7m and Other losses ol £0.3m

2. Quality, Capacity and Occupancy metrics refate to the UK business only, ualess stated

3, Capaeity nn Occupancy quoted are averges for the period on a non-proforma besis, with dual placements included as a single unit of

capa

city and occupancy




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Business Review (continued
Quality of our scrvices

A primary indicator of the Group’s performance is the level of Quality of the services we provide to those in our
care.

Regulatory requirements differ across the Group, though the vast majority of our UK services are regulated by the
Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services and Skills (“Ofsted’), and in Scotland and Wales by their
local equivalent. All schools and children’s homes must be licensed, and the relevant regulators award quality
ratings to each serviee. In Abu Dhabi, the school operated by the Group is regulated by the Abu Dhabi Department
of Education and Knowledge (*ADEK®) but is also subject to British School Overseas inspections, In addition, a
limited number of our services ave also regulated the Carc Quality Commission (*CQC?) in England, and, in
Scolland, Wales, Northern Ireland, and the Middle East, by the local equivalent.

Within the UK the Group achieved an average % of facilities rated as Good or above by their respective regulators
of 83.2%. This is above the national benchmark level published by Ofsted but is below where the business’
objectives are in this area, The provision of the best quality service i3 3 key priority and the business is focused on
continuous improvement in this area, supported by increased investment in our support functions that divectly or
indircetly support the quality of our services.

Within the Middle East, the Group’s specialist education operations in Abu Dhabi (the first dedicated autism school
in Abu Dhabi for Emirati students in partnership with ADEK) underwent the first major inspection of a dedicated
aulism school in the region, The outcome of this inspection was formally announced on ' November 2022, with the
school achieving an Qutstanding rating across all areas. This further demonstirates the Group’s established delivery
of exceptional level specialist education services beyond the Group’s primacy UK market.

Results for the period

The Group delivered high quality services to meet the needs of a wide spectrum of young people, families, Local
Authorities and communities across the UK and Middie East. With an average number of 1,660 young people using
our services in the UK during the period and {80 young people in the Middle East. In addition, the velume of outpatieat
appointments in our Middle East Welibeing centres increased by 51.1% vs the equivalent prior period, driven partly
by the opening of two new centres in Abu Dhabi and Saudi Arabia.

The results for the year are set out in the consolidated Income Statement on page 26 and the financial position of the
Group as at 31 August 2022 is set out in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position on page 28. Group revenue
for the year was £179.2m and Operating profit before exceptional costs, impairment loss and other losses was £23.1m,
which represents an operating margin of 12.9% of revenue. Key factors of the operating profitability of the business
include the number of service users in our facilities, the availability and cost of staffing and the cost of associaled non-
wage costs required to support the young people and our operations more generally.

The Group’s net loss for the period was £27.1m, which was after charging £19.7m impaivment to goodwill relating to
the Sandcastle division, and after £7.8m of exceptional costs, these primarily refate to the costs incurred in relation to
the corporate transactions underizken and outlined sbove and in note 17. Further detalls of these exceptional charges
and impairment are given in notes 10 and 135 to the financial statements.

The Group®s financial position and underlying operating cash generation is positive, with net assets of £92.0m at the
close of the period and net cash flow from operating activities during the period of £34.2m,




Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period fo 31 August 2022 (continued)
Business Review (continued)
Results for the period (continued)

The largest component of our cost base is the wages and related oncosts of our staff, which represents 67% of operating
costs,

Staff are our primary resource and the Group prioritises the wellbeing, retention and recruitment of our workforce.
'Fhis includes incteased investment in staff wages, but also in a range of measures designed to increase staff wellbeing
and engagement.

Staft shortages have been a feature of the reporting period, with a small number of our available residential places
being offine due lo these constraints, Despite these factors the financial performance of the Group was inline with the
original business plan supporting the acquisition of ACSL.

Future developmeuts and strategy

Management consider the Group 1o be in a good position to expand the provision of its services in both the UK and
Middle East. Building on its existing high quality provision and strong reputation within each region to provide
essential services fo a grenter number of people in the communities that it serves.

The Group slrategy prioritises the improvement of quality and uiilisation across all our existing facilities, in parallel
with continuing to expand the specialist education aspects of the business. With the planned opening of new education
capacity at existing and newly identified sites, being complemented by the targeled and selective acquisition of
existing specialist education providers.

Following the close of the reporting period, and consistent with this strategy, the Group completed the acquisition of
a specialist education provider in the UK, BHIS Holdings Limited. The acquired business, and its wholly owned
subsidiaries, provide specialist education for up fo approximately 100 primary and secondary school aged young
people in the East of England. To support this acquisition, and the Group’s breader growth objectives, the Group
entered into an extension of its available external debt facilities with its existing lenders, This new growth facility was
agreed and effective from 8§ February 2023,

In addition, afier the close of the reporting period the Group completed a reorganisation of its UK operations. This
reorganisation is aimed at improving and strengthening the management structure to increase focus on delivering on
the Group’s objectives for all aspects of our services, including optimising staffing, and thereby improving utilisation
acrass our portfolio, by increasing iransparency and managemenl communication through all levels of the business.

In the Middle East, the Group is growing via the maturing of its recently opened Wellbeing Centres and via wider
opportunities to expand the education offering across region. In KSA the Group opened a Wellbeing Centre in
Riyadh through its joint venture with 4 local partner that was entered into in 2020, The Group contitiues to view
eurrent and future local parinerships in the region as a key avenuc for growth.




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group can be impacted by a range of external factors. The principal factors are the availability and retention of
the apprapriate number of trained and qualified staff, the macro-economic environment resulting in increased inflation
and increased interest rates, changes in the UK government’s poticy towards the [unding of specialist education and
care, changes in the regulatory regime, compelitive threats from other providers and the loss of key individuals, The
following arc the mast significant risks and usicertainties facing the Group.

Failure to comply with regulafion and increased regulatory costs

Al of the Group’s services are subject to a high leve! of regulation by various regulatery bodies. Laws and
regulations are evolving within the sector (and may be introduced in the future} that could impose increased costs on
the Group’s operations. The Group is unable to predict the content of new legislation and/or regulations and their
effect on its business.

Inspections by regulators are carried out on Lath an announced and unamnounced basis, dependent on the specific
repulatory provisions relating to different care or education services, The failure to comply with relevant regulations,
that therefore leads to the determination of regulatory non-compliance, or the failure of the Group to cure any defect
noled in an inspection report could result in the revocation or imposition of condilions on the regisiration of any
service or a decrease in or cessaticn of, services provided by the Group at one or more of its facilities.

To mitigate these risks, the quality of care is monitored by an experienced team and through the establishment of’
robust policics and procedures. The team are independent of the aperating divisions and report directly {o the Board.
Homes are regularly audited by the team 10 ensure compliance with eare standards and action plans are drawa up in
appropriale cases. Risks also mitigated by investing in the legal and compliance team, and in recruitment and
training. Where changes in legislation can be predicted, the Group models the impact the changes will have in
advance of the legistation being imptemented.

Employces

The Group’s performance depends on its aperational staff at our schools and residential homes. The managers of our
facilities, and their respective site teams, are essential for the provision of our services. The loss of key individuals
and the inability to recruit people with the right experience and skills from the local community could adversely
impact the Group’s results.

‘I'he relevant [abour markets for certain of our services have become more challenging over the reporting period and
may continue to be challenging, or become more so, in the future. This may lead to an increase in the number of
staff vacancies across the Group and therefore restrict the proportion of our capacity that can be fully operational
and/or slow future growth prospects, Whilst the challenges have been less evident in the Education portion of the
business, as compared to the residential aspects of our services, it has neveitheless been a factor across the Group.

To mitigate these issues the Group has implemented a wide range of measures to crthance bath our recraitment and
retention of staff. These initiatives are led by dedicated senior management from our Human Resources department,
along with our Learning and Development function, and are targeted at improving overall employee welfare and to
ensure our staff offering, both financial and non-financial, is competitive within the markets in which we operate.

Specifically, regarding staff pay, the Direciors take steps to ensure competitive salary levels across the Group and
have sought to increase across salaries across the Group during the period to aid retention and recruitment, with
specific consideration to the cost-af-living increases on all staff caused by the macro-economic environment.

Honwever, there is a risk that these salary levels are not sufficient to improve the Group’s staff metrics and therefore
further constraints an our services due to staff shortages may be possible.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Principal Risls and Uncertainties (cantinued)

Non-Wage suppltes and cost inflatioxn

In addition to workforce remuneration, the Group aiso incurs costs on & range of supplies, including food, education
supplies, energy/utilities and rental expenses. The current macro-cconomic backdrop places increasing pressure on
{he availability and cost of certain key supplies.

With energy, and other bulk product supply, challenges acrass Europe driving higher inflation levels than in
previous years there is increased price pressure on the Group’s cost base, There is a risk that these costs increase
further and, whilst they are 2 minority of the Group's cost base, increases could still be material,

In addition, there is a risk that certain supplies will 1ake longer 10 source and therefore substitute products may need
to be found, there is a risk this could cause disruption to our services and thal al{ernative supplies may be more
costly than those supplies which they replace.

In addition, certain supplies, such as food, are sourced from a low number of major naliona! suppliers and therefore
there may be a risk that distuption of service at one supplier, or price changes by those suppliers, could have an impact
on the Group.

To mitigate these areas the Group has a dedicated procurement function focused on optimising our sources, costs of
and security of supply. The Group engages on a regular basis with all our key suppliers to ensure effeclive management
of these risks. In addition, the Group secks to agree pricing and security of supply on a forward basis where possible
and appropriate, for example on our energy supplies, to increase visibility over cost and reduce supply side risks.
Management of these risks include maintaining relationships with secondary source supplies to ensure options are
available to mitigate disruptions in supply {rom a particular provider.

Loss of #evenue from contracts with UK local authorities

A substantial propottion of the Group’s UK revenue detives from publicly funded Local Autherities. The Group
cxpeets to continue to rely on the ability and willingness of these bodies to pay for the Group’s services, Whilst
there is an obligation for Local Authorities to fund the provision of such services to young people there is a risk that
either budget constrainis or other financial pressures could cause such publicly funded bodles to allocate iess money
to the types of service that the Group provides, or that political change or policy changes mean that fewer services
are contracted from independent sector providers.

In addition, there is a risk tha! these Local Authorities are not eble to mee! the increased costs of us viably providing
services at cerain facilities, due 1o the above-mentioned cost pressures.

To mitigate these risks the Group regularly assesses services provided fo ensure they represent value for money and
where necessary repositions services to align with demand. Through the Group®s dedicated Bidding and
Commissioning team, and other members of our senior management team, the Group engages in regular
commurication with cur Local Authorities customers to ensure these is clear andd open dialogue with our key
customers.
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Strategic Report for the period fo 31 August 2022 (coniinued)

Eyincipal Risks and Uncertainties (confinued

IT security and Data Protection

The Group’s Il Infrastructure is an integral part of its operating capability. This infrastructure provides conncetivity,
hardware and software applications to all of our facitities and central functions. Furthermare, the Group holds large
volumes of sensitive data, a portion of which resides within oue 1T environment,

There is a risk that the systems or applications fail or are subject to a sceurity breach that temporatily prevents their
usc and therefore impacts our services, In addition, such an event may compromise sensitive data held within the
Group relating to its customers, which could expose the Group to further liability due to such a breach.

The Group invests significantly in meeting these potential risks. With a dedicated IT department reasonable for the [T
envitonment and securily, complimented by external expert advice and services procured to enhance key aspects of
Data Protecticn and Cyber security.

Impact from the risks related to the Covid-19 pandemic

The global outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020 represented a significant source of uncertainty within the wider
macroeconomic environment, including the sectors in which the Group operates, Distuption was experienced by most
sectors, and the Group’s services were not immune to These impacts,

Given the nature of our services the Group continued to operate its full service provision, with all schools and homes
remaining cpen in the UK, and our Middle East Wellbeing centres moving successfully o an online appointment
based model. The teams across the Group performed with oulstanding profcssionalism to ensure we continued fo
deliver essential education and care to all those that rely on out services.

Whilst there were notable staff absences due to scli-isolation, and the resulting operational challenges, the long term
financial impact on the Group was not significant, and with the exception of the longer term consiraints that have
impacted the general labour market referenced above, the Group is cwrvently not impacted by the pandemic.

The Directors believe any further similar outbreak would be met with a similar successful response, but there is a risk
that a new Covid variant, or cther pandemic, may have a greater impact on the Group’s ability to provide its services,

To mitigate this the Group has clear and robust infection control policies, including contingency planning for staffing
in the event of a further outbreak.

i0
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Principal Risks and Unceriainties (continued)

Yinancia} rlsk management

The Group is exposed to financial visks in the form of credit, interest and liguidity risks which wrise in the normal
course of business, The primary financiaf risks (hal the Group s exposed to are noted below, for further detail on these
financial risks please see note 27.

Credit risk

Financia] instruments which potentially expose the Group to credit risk consist primarily of cash and trade receivables.
Cash is only deposited with major financial institutions that satisfy certain credil criteria,

Credit risk is net considered to be significant given that over 90% of revenue is derived from publicly finded entities,
and payment is taken in advance or at time of treatment for privately funded healthcare services at our Wellbeing
cenires,

Inferest rate risk

The Group is financed by a combination of Senior and Revolving externel credit facilities. All the external debt ol the
Group contains a variable element which is linked to the Sterling Overnight Index Average, published by the Bank of
England. Senior loans are repayable on 31 August 2028, and Revolving facilitics are repayable on 31 August 2026,

The Group regularly reviews the options available te it for the hedging of interest rate risk, but curtently does not have
a hedged eomponent to the interest burden on jts externat debt. In light of prevailing market conditions, and the high
cost of hedging instruments, the Directors believe the Group has sufficient capacity to address the risk of interest rate
rises.

Ligquidity risk

The Groyp prepares annuat and monthly cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated projects.
The Group has sufficient available facilities and cash flows from profits to fund current commitments. The Group has
aceess {o a Revolving Credit Facility that is available to support the Group’s operational liquidity requirements at the
signing of the financial statements the majorily of this Revolving Credit Facility was undrawn.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Section 172(1) statcment

The fallowing Section 172 statement, which is required by the Companies Act 2006, describes how the Directors
have had regard to the matters set out in s172 (ke to 1£) including key decisions and matters that are of strategic
importance to the Group, The Board of Directors, in line with their duties under 5172 of the Companies Act 2006,
act in a way they consider, in good faith would be most likely to promote the success of the Group for the benefit of
its members as a whole, and in deing so have regard to a range of matters when making decisions for the long term.

We aim to pursue an open and transparent dialogue with our key stakeholders in order to develop a clcar
understanding of theil needs, assess their perspectives and monitor their impact on our strategic objectives. As part
of the Buard’s decision-making process, the Directors consider the potential impact of decisions on relevant
stakcholders whilst also having regard to a number of broader factors, including the impact of the Group’s
operations on the community and environment, responsible business practices and the iikely consequences of
decisions in the long term.

Key stakeholders

Our key stakeholders are our service users {(and their families), our workforce, our regulators and our investors and
fenders. Our commissioners, suppliers, and the communities we operate within are also important stakeholder proups.
All key Beard decisions take into account the impact on the relevant stakcholder proups, as follows:

Service users and thelr families

The Group provides specialist education, care and mental health services to a wide range of young people in the UK,
and (o young people and adulls in the Middic Fast. Those to whom services are provided, and their families, are
fundamental to every aspect of the Group’s operations and objectives. The Directors monitor the quality of service
provision to ensure the highest levels of care are provided by a highly skilled and well equipped workforce. In addition,
the Directors monitor the condition and appropriateness of the environment across the Group®s facilities to ensure the
physical environment in which services are provided ave appropriately configured and maintained to the high standards
required for leading education and care provision. Feedback is received dircotly through eur operational teams, who
interact directly with service users and their families, and through mulliple channels of communication to senior
management {o gnsure issues can be raised and escalated outside of any specific care team or facilily, The directors
are committed fo oper communication and transparency regarding all aspects of our service delivery, and ensuring
the Group’s operations deliver service prevision to meet the specific needs of each individual service user.

Workforee

Our work[orce is key to providing safe and effective care to those whom we support. The Group employs a wide array
of specialist cducation and care professionals and engagement with those employees is paramount. The Directors
monitor the results of staff surveys, both regular aud ad hoc, together with the Group’s system of employee forums
which occur at Jocal, regional and national level, meaning the Board is able to discuss human rescurcing matters with
the interests of its workforce at heart. An example of actions taken in response to the feedback generated through these
channels is the articulation of tailored career pathways available to al} Group employees. Annoal salary reviews arc
undertaken with reference fo the importance of colleague retention, changes in the National Living Wage, and
commercial factors. The Directors are commitied to communicating the results of any wage reviews In a transparent
manner. Further information in respect of employees is set out on the Dircctors’ report.

Investors

Our shareholders register consists of a majority shareholders, Standbyco 35 B.V. who are whelly owned by Waterland
Private Equity Investments B.V., and a number of minority shareholders which includes our largest single landlord
(Medical Propertics Trust) and various members of the Group®s management team. The Board engages regularly with
its major shavehalders in order to, inter alia, develop long-term and shart-term business strategy, decide upon rescutce
allocation and consider key business risks. This includes regular reporting to both Waterland Private Equity and
Medical Properties Trust to ensure clear alignment and trensparency over Group performance and direction.

12




Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (confinued)
Seetion 172{1) statement {continued)

Regulators

We are subject fo a high degree of regulation, particularly in relation lo the registration and ongoing inspection of our
setvices. ‘Che “*business review” seclion above outline the key regulatory bodies, Resulls ol inspections znd more
general reports made by the regulstors ure discussed by the Board where appropriate, and ongoing dialogue is
maintained in order to respond with agility to emerging areas of focus. Some of our regulators also have responsibilify
for monitoring the ongoing financial viability of our business — senior managemenl meet with the regulators
periodically to engage in this process, Staff bonuses schemes at all levels of the organisation are at feast partly linked
to the outeomes of internal and extemal quality metrics,

Customers

The majority of cur revenue is generated from the provision of services to Local Authorities and other public bodies,
with a minotity of revenues generated firom private funding. fn all cases is important that we evolve our service
provision to satisfy {ocal demand {the needs of which can change over {ime), incet changing education and care criteria
and provide such services at the right time and place at an appropriate cost. Communication with customers is ongoing
both locally and nationally, and the Board will consider the requirements of customers when allocaling reseurces for
new or amended service offerings, and apreeing a genera!l approach to funding.

Suppliers

We aim to treat our suppliers fairly and work in partnership with them as they provide essential goods and services to
the Group. It is our policy to adhere 1o agreed credit terms. We maintain strong supplier relationships across our supply
chaing, led by the Group's dedicated procurement funciion. Our key suppliers also includes our contracted workforce,
agency workets and rclated staffing agencies in the teaching and care professions, who play an cssential role in
delivering quality services. For all supplies we engage in transparent and robust tendering and onboarding processes
1o deliver fair and sustainable outcomes for suppliers and for the Group,

Copununitles

The Group operates nationally and many of our facilities are embedded within the wider community, It is therefore
important that the impact of our operations on the communities we operate in are laken into consideralion, We arc
also cognisant of the need to consider the overall environment when contracting with suppliers, or considering any
significant development projects, for example.

Principal decisions

The Group defines principal decisions as those that are material, or of strategic imporiance {o the Group, and also
those that have a sigaificant impact on any of aur key stakeholder groups. By way of example, a selection of principal
decisions taken by the Board during the year is set out below, highlighting the primary stakeholder groups affected
and some of the considerations taken into account in reaching these prineipal decisions.

Apyproval of the 2022/23 budget

The Board approved, prior to the start of the new financial and academic year, the final budget for the twelve menths
ending 3 tst August 2023. The budget includes forecasts for each existing facility as well as central functions in order
lo arrive at an aggregated business plan. The key stakeholder groups affected are our investors and our workforce.
Some of the key considerations taken into accouni included the balance of delivering ever greater quality of services,
improved staff retention and growth of our services to service a greater number of people.

i3
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Section_172(1} statement (continued

Facility refurbishments, expansions and service changes

As part of the 2022/23 budget, and locking ahead into the medium term, the Board approved a number of significent
capital expenditurce projects n order to refurbish and/or expand cxisting facilities, retool locations 1o better reflect
demand for services and consider selective additional property acquisitions to expand certain service lines. The key
stakeholder groups affected are our investors, our commissioners and cutrent and future service users. Some of the
key considerations taken into account included the likely return on investment of such projects, the ability of a project
to meet the requitements of commissioners in providing a particular service, and our ability to safely and effectively
operate the service,

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery matters

The Group has an cslablished and Robust Anti-Bribery and Corruption processes and conirols in place, These are
supported by an internal audit function that has the mandate to perform snnounced and unannounced inspections and
investigation info any transactions occurring at a local, regional or group level.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Trevor M Torringio
Director Director

The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
Woking.

GU21 6HT

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the period ended 31 August 2022

The Directors present their report and the consolidated financial statements for the period from 28 July 2021 to 31
August 2022,

Incorporation
The Compaty was incorporated in England and Walcs and commenced trading on 28 July 2021,

The consolidated financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with Internalional financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS") and the IFRS Interprelations Committee (“IFRS I1C”) interpretations as adopted by the UK.

This report shold be read in conjunction with the strategic report from page 4. The Group has chosen in accordance
with Section 414C (2) of the Companics Act 2006 to set out in the strategic report the following which the Directors
believe to be of sirategic imporlance:

» Business review;

»  Future development and siralegy;

s Principal risk and uncerlainties; and

»  Financial risk management.
Directors of the Group

The Dircetors, who held office during the period, were as follows:
Oliver J Bevan (appointed 28 July 2021)

Ryan Hallworth {(appointed 28 July 2021)

Ryan D Jervis (Appointed 31 August 2021)

Trevor M Torrington (Appoinied 31 August 2021)

Dividends

The Board has not recommended a dividend for the reporting peried and has no current plan to do so.




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 20622 (continued)

Statement of Directors® Responsibilities

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the financial slatements in
accerdance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have clected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK udopled International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs). Under company [aw the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affaivs of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

¢ select suitable accounting policies and apply lhem consistently:

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are veasonable and prudent;

s state whether applicable UK adopted International Finuncial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it Is inappropriate to presume that the
compeany will continuc in business,

The Directors are respensible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group’s and the company’s transaclions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and the company and enable them lo ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the asseis of the Group and the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Corporate governance
The Group has robust Governance and oversight of all aspeets of the business:

*  The Board meet at least six times per annum and are responsible for the overall management and direction
of all aspects of the Group.

s TheExecutive Commitice, which is Chaired by the Chief Executive Officer and includes senior management
from across all aspects of the business, meets monthly and ave the primary executive team for the execution
and governance of the day to day running of the Group.

¢ Quality and Compliance committee, which is Chaired by the Director of Governance and includes senior
operational and function leads directly refated to education and care quality, meets monthly and is the senior
oversight of operational quality and risk.

*  Performance and Commercial Review committee, which is Chaired jointly by the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer, meets monthly and is the senior oversight of the financial and commercial
performance of the business,

» Independent inspections, in line with the relevant legislation (regulation 44 of The Children’s Homes
{England} Regulations 2015)) the Group has a rolling programme of independent inspections that report into
the Executive committee and above quality commiitee. These provide independent oversight over the quality
delivery of appropriate and compliant education and care services,
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Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Going cancern

The Board reviews forecasts of the Group's projected trading and associated liquidity requirements based on a range
of scenarios (o ensure it has sulilicient cash to meet ils operational and {inancial needs. These forccasts are underpinned
by detailed and embedded torecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibility over both the near 1erm
and Jong-ferm liquidity requirements of the Group, to inform the Directors decision making on all key financial
matters. The [directors consider both short terti and lang-term forecasts for the business, ranging from roiling three-
month daily liquidily forecasting, annual budget and periodic inira year veforecasling processes, and longer term 3
year long range plans for the Group. Each of these projects the liquidity and covenant headroon: for the Group.

The Group made a loss before tax of £27.9m for the period ended 31 August 2022, this loss in the current period is
driven by the non-cash impainnient of goodwill {see note 15) of £19.7m and exceplional costs of £7.8m, excluding
these items the Group made a Ioss of £0.1m and an operating profit of £23.1m. The Group is forceast to make an
operating profit during the going concern period. The Group generates sufficient cash to cover ils liabiiities and surplus
balances are held as cash reserves (o invest in the Group and support the business in fature periods. At 31 August 2022
the Group had debt of £165.0m due Lo its external lenders and finance lease Kabilities of £:60.5m. No loans were due
to our shareholders,

These considerations include the availability of committed, but undrawn, debt facilities that are available to the Group
to support general corporate and working capital purposes. As at 319 August 2022 these available but undrawn
facilities were £19.7m

The Dircctors assessment of going concern considers three primary arcas:
1. Iley fundamental business factors

The Group's primary business, and majority of the Group’s rovenues and cashflows, is generated via the provision
of services with specific characteristics that are key in considering downside risk:

Provision of esseatial services

The group provides essential education and care services to meet the needs of a wide spectrum of young people in
ow society, The demand for these serviees has increased over the last decade and continues fo do so across the
country, Cetiain service arcas are stated as a Governmental priority, hence funding is ringfenced for many of the
areas the Group provides,

Diversified payor base with low credit risk across the significant majority of the Gronp

The majority of the Group’s revenues and caghfiows are generaled from customers that are publicly funded. This
Payor includes over 180 Local Authority customers across England, Wales and Seotland. In the majority of case
each LA services and fees are provided on bespoke commercial terms and paid for separately by each customer,
significantly reducing the customer concentration risk.

Established position as a Irusfed provider

The Group is one of the leading providers of such services in the UK. The Group holds long standing relationships,
oflen held at both operational and management levels, with its individual customers. The Group has consistently
delivered above national benchmarks for quality service provision and centinves fo place, as a priority, the
provision of the highest quality care to meet the needs of everyone il serves.

Sirength, depth and experience of the Group’s management teant and hyfrasiructure

Over many years the Group has developed, and invested in, the strength and experience of its workforce and
management team, These factors enable the nationwide provision of our services 1o be managed within a rigorous
risk management framework, to respond to tisks as they arise.
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Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Going coneern (continued)

Versatiity of skills to meet dewnand changes

The skills embedded in our workforce, and the nature of many of our facilities, are such that we can be
responsive to changes in the needs and demands of the peoplc we care for, their funders and regulators. This
agility reduces the time taken to adapt the Group to best address its core markets.

Cash flaw visibifity

The majority of young peaple in the 1JK that we care for remain within our services for more then a year, and the
payment value and timing for the related services are targely defined at the oulset of each placement. These
factors provide a base for good visibility over core trading performance and the working capital requirements of
the business. Thereby Ieading to good levels of cash flow visibility over the near to medium term.

2. Assessment of the principal risks and impact of a severe but plavsible dowside scenarlo

In assessing the potential impact of a range of visk factors on the business the Dircctors have considered the
likely impact on the Group of a range of risks specific to the relevant business sector, as well as the compound
impact of risk factors in the broader macro environment that have evolved since the balance sheet date.

In particular, a severe but plavsible downside scenario is considered by the Directors in order to assess the likely
impact of multiple different adverse factors impacting the Group simultaneously, giving rise to a material
adverse impact on the Group®s profitability and liguidity during the going concern period. Further details can be
found in note 3 of the financial statements

3. Consideration of the controllable action that the Divectors ean tale to mitigate a severe but plausible
downside scenario

In response to downside risks the Group has a range of actions, within its conirol, that it could deploy to mitigate
the impact. These inchude but are not limited 1o:

¢ Reduction in non-essential capital expenditure, including the capital expenditure on future growth projects

+  Adapting or pausing of services where no demand exists to reduce or hait losses at a particular facility and
better deploy resources

. Reduction in certain arcas of discretionary spend that would not have any short o medium term adverse
impact on the Group

In aggregate the inclusion of mitigation actions materially increases the level of liquidity and covenant headroom
further, versus the unmitigated scenario

Having considered all of the above factors the Directors have concluded there is no material uncertainty on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern for the pericd from the date of the epproval of these financial
statements to 31 August 2024,
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Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Engagement with employees

The Directors recognise that the continued position of the Group in the specialist cducation, care and behavicural care
industry depends on the quality and motivation of its employees. Well trained, engaged and quality employees are
crusial for the Group to ensure that service users receive the best quality care, The key guality performance indicators
the Group uses to neasure engagement and Waining are: the employce opinion survey, employee sickness levels and
compliance with the Group e-Jearning programme. The Group has low levels of sickness and high levels of compliance
with training programmies, Whilst monitoring these performance indicators, the Group continucs to review its
remyneration system o ensure i is fair, transparent, flexible and provides individual recognition. Employees have a
personal development plan that is monitored, assessed and modified during the annual appraisal process.

The Group recognises that good and effective employee communications ave pariiculacty important to retaining and
motivating emiployees, and throughout the business it is the Directors’ policy to promote the understanding by alt
employees of the Group’s business aims, purpose, performance and individual opportunities for personal and career
development, This is achieved through internal publications, presentations on performance and a vaviety of other
approaches appropriate for a particular location. Employees are consulted on issues through our Active Colleague
Engegement (*f ACE") forunss. In all these aveas, the Group continues to further invest in resource and IT solutions in
order to deljver a positive experience for all our colleagues.

The Directors believe that it is important to recruit and retain capable and caring staff regardless of their gender,
martflal status, race or rcligion. 1t is the Group’s poliey to give full and fair consideration to applications for
employment from people who arc disabled, lo coniinue wherever possible the employment of and to arrange
appropriate trainiug for, employees who become disabled and lo provide equal opportunities for the carcer
development, training and promotion of disabled employees.

Charitable Donations

During the period the Group made charitable donation of £50,000. Individual donations were as foliows:

Charity - £

UNICEF - Ukraine appeal 50,000
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Dircctars’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

In April 2019, the Department for Business, Energy and Indusirial Strategy introduced a new reporting regulation
entitled the Streamtined Energy and Carbon Reporling Framework (“SECR™), replacing various other reporting
requirements. Organisations subject io SECR are required to include information relating to their energy usape and

carbon emissions.

The energy used and emissions the period ended 31 August 2022 are as follows:

Emission type Total Calculated
Volume Emissions

{lkWh) (Tonnes of

CO%})

Scope [ (direct} 13,814,587 2,954,9
Scope 2 {indirect) 5,820,739 970.9
Scope 3 (indirect) ( 26,798 26.8
Total 18,862,124 3,952.6

Scope | Bmissions {direct) ave Emissions fram activitics owvned or contislicd by the Group, thal release emissions
into the atmosphere, scope [ emissions for Aspris Group include amengst other, combustion in ewned boilers and

vehicles.

Scope 1 Emissions (direct) for the period ace as follows:

Lnergy type Definition Total Calculated

Volume Emissions

(kWh) (Tonnes of

7 CQ%)

Gas Emissiois from combustion of gas 6,407,987 1,169.7

Cther Fuels Emissions from combustion of fuels for stationary 7,153,714 1,532.3

machinery and engines

Transport Emissions from combustion of fuels for transport 252,886 252.9
purposes L

Totat 13,814,587 2,954.9

Scope 2 Emissions (indivect) are emissions released inte the atrnosphere associated with the Groups consumption of
purchased electricity, heat, and cooling. These are indirect emissions that are a consequence of the Group’s

activities, but which cecur at sources that the Group does not own or control.
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Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (continued)

Scope 2 Emissions (indirect) for the period are as follows:

Energy fype Definition Fotal Calculated
Yolume Emissions

(lkwWh) (Tonnes of

CO%)

Electricity Emissions fiom purchased electricity 5,020,739 970.9
Total 5,020,739 970.9

Scope 3 Fmissions (indirect) are emissions that eve a consequence of the actions of the Group, which cocur at source
which are not classified as scope 2 emissions. Examples of Seope 3 emissions ave business travel by means not
owned or controlied by the Group.

Scope 3 Emissions (indirect) for the period are as follows:

Encrgy type Definition Total Calculated
Yolume Emissions

(LWh) (Tonnes of

) CO%)
Employce-cwned cars  Emissions from business travel in rental cars or 26,798 26.8

empioyee-owned vehicles where the company 1is
responsible for purchasing fuel {(mandatory)

Total 26,798 26.8

Intensity Ratio

The Group monitors an Intensity ratio in the form of a comparison of emissions to turnovet:

Tutensity measure Turnover Intensity

£m Ratlo?

Tonnes CO% per total £m turnover 179.2 22.06

Total T2 22.06
11O efTummaver £m

Quantification and reporting methodology

The Group has taken guidance from the UK Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines (March 2019), the
GHG Reporting Protoco} - Corporate Standard, and from the UK Government GHG Conversion Faclors for
Company Reporting dacument for calculating carbon emissions. Energy usage information (gas and electricity) has
been obtained directly from our energy suppliers and half-howrly (HH) data, where applicable, for the ITH supplies.
For supplies where there were not complete periods energy usage available, flal profile estimation technigues were
used to complete the periods consumption. Transport mileage data was obtained from expense claims submitted by
the Group's cars and grey flect. CO% emissions were caleulnted using the appropriate emission faclors 2022 from
(he UK Government GHG conversion information.
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Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamlined energy and ¢arbon reporting (continued)

Energy efficient action

In the past year the Group has undertaken various energy cfficiency works across the estate, including the upgrading
of AC systems, bailers and insulation, The Group have, at a number of sites, commenced conversion of Oil heating
systems to more efficient LPG solutions. These focussed works are ongoing alongside general refurbishments
undertaken including LED lighting and general efficiencies.

The Group will continue our efforts through participation in Phase 3 of ESOS (Energy Saving Opportunities Scheme)
to assist in the targeting and reduction of its carbon footprint through continued structured investment in energy
efficicney programmes,

Ethical trading

The Group endeavours to purchase goods and services with the leasl envirconmental impact. Our efforts for waste
diversion from landfill, recycling, collection, and segregation have meant that the Group have diverted $9% of rade
waste away from landfill. Aspris also recycled 35% of all trade waste generated, and we remain committed to
increasing this percentage of recycling year on year, with a target of 50% by the end of 2023,

We continue to be supported in our efforts through the collection of recyclable materials, the collection and
conversion of our waste cooking oit to diesel, and other initiatives.

Disclgsure of information to the auditor

Each Director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a divector in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor is aware of that information, The Directors
confirm that there is no relevant information that they know of and of which they know the auditor is unaware.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Trevor M Torringth
Director

The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
Woking.

GU21 6HT

21 March 2023
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{NDEPENDENT AUTHTORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OFASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
Qpinion on the financial statements
In our opinion:

s the fnancial slalements give a frue and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s
alfairs as at 31 August 2022 and of the Group’s loss for the pericd then ended;

« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international
accounting standards;

+  the Parenl Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

« the financiat statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

We have audited the financial statements of Aspris FHoldeo Limited (“the Parent Company”} and its subsidiaries (“thc
Group™) for the period ended 31 Aupust 2022 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, Consolidated
Statemen! of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, Statement of Financial Pusition, Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows, Statemient of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significanl accounting
policies, The financial reporling framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK
adopted international accounting standards, and as regards the Parent Company financial statements, as applied in
accotdance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis fox opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} ({SAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standsards are further described in the Audilor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the cthical requirements that ave relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in sccordance with these requirements,

Counelusions relating 1o going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors” use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the {inanciat statementls is appropriate,

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainiies relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or Parent Company’s ability to
confinue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statemenls are authorised

for jssue,

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern arc described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINUED)
Other information
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the Arnual Report, other than the financlal statermnents and our auditor’s report thereon. Qur gpinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent othenwvise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,
OGur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, considerwhether the other information js materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otheryise appeats
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required o determine whether this gives rise to a material missiatement in the financial statements themselves, 1,
based on the work swe have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to tcport in this regard.
Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

I our opindon, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the information given in the Strategic report and the Dircctors® report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

» the Strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and ils environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have hot identified material misstatements in the Steategic report or the Directors’ reporl,

‘We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation 1o which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

= adequale accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or refurns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

» the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

« cortain disclosures of Divectors® remuncation specified by law are not made; oy

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,
Responsibilities of Directors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Divectors' Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for ihe
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and falr view, and for such internal

control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDIMTOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Parent Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless (he Directors either intend to Houidale the Group or the Parent Compeny or {o
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do <o,

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audil of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stafements as a whole are fiee from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reusonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always delect a material misstatement when it exisis, Misstalements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the sggrogate, they could reasonshly be expected lo influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.,

Extent o which the andil was capable of defeciing irregilarities, including fraud

Irregularilies, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, (o detect malerial misstatements In respect of irregularities, including
fraud. "The extent lo which our precedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including [raud is detailed below;

We have identitied and assessed the potential risks related (o irregularitios, including fraud, by considering the
following:

o the nature of the industry, including the design of the Group’s remuneration policies;

o enquirics of management regarding; compliance with laws and regulations; the detection and
respense 1o the risk of fraud and any knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud; and the
conlrols in place to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with taws and regulations.

o oblaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework in which the Group operates,
including employment law, and Health and Safety requirements.

o performing procedures to verify the existence of revenues, and consider the risks around the
frazdutent recognition of amounts.

We have responded to risks identified by performing procedures including the following:
o enquiry of management concerning actual and potential ltigation and claims;

o reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation lo assess
complience with relevant laws and regulations;

o performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships which may
indicate risks of misstatement due to fraud; and

o 1cading the minules of meetings of those charged with governance identify any instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations.

We have also considered the risk of fraud through management override of contiols by:

o sample testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessing whether the
Jjudgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating
the busingss rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course
of business;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINUEDL)

o discussing among the engagement team how and where fraud might oceur in the {inancial statements
and any potential indicators of fraud. As part of this discussion, we considered potential for fraud
in revenue recognition, specifically in relation to revenue existence, as well as the potential for
management override of controls specifically in relation to the posting of journat adjustments and
the inappropriate use of estimates.

o  in addressing the risk for fraud in revenue recognition, testing the appropriateness of the revenue
recognition policies and the application of these policies and performing specific procedures over
the existence and cut-off of revenue; and

o discussing with management and those charged with governance whether they are nware of any
frauds, or non-compliance with laws and regulations, during the period.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstalement in the financial statements,
recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not defecting
onc resuiting fom crror, as fraud may involve deliberate conceatment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or
through collusion. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and the further removed non-
compliance with aws and regulations is from the cvents and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less
likely we are to become aware of it

A fRuther description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:
httpsdiwwy. fic.org.uldauditorsresponsibililies. This deseription forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Parl 16 of
the Companics Act 2004. Our audit work has been undertaken sc that we might state to the Parent Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an audiior’s report and for no other purpose, ‘T'o the fullest
extent permitted by faw, we do nol accept or assume responsibility to ayone other than the Parent Company and the
Parent Company’'s members as a body, for our audit work, for this repait, or for the opinions we have formed,

DocuSigned by:

Paud, ”&b.m’v«gfow

E10CCIOCF40A94CT

Paul Etherington BSc FCA CF (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
Reading, UK

22 March 2023

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered In England and Wales (with registered number 0C305127).
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Consolidated Income statement for the period ended 31 August 2022

Note 2022

£

Revenue 4 179.2

Operating cosls {156.1)

Exceptional items 10 (7.8)

Impairment loss 15 (19.7)

Other losses 8 0.3)
Operating loss j

Net finance costs 9 (22.7)
1.oss before taxation m

Income tax i1 0.3
Loss attributable to the owners of the Group W
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The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements,




Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period to
31 August 2022

2022
£m

Loss for the period 27.1)
‘Total comprehensive income for the period (27.1)

28
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Aspris Holdco Limited
Registration Number: 13534635

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Note 2022
£m
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 158.1
Right of use assets 13 156.4
Intangible assets 14 143.4
457.9
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 18 24.5
Cash and cash equivalent 19 18.1
42.6
Total assets 500.5
Current liabilifies
Lease liabilities 13 5.1
Trade and other payables 24 (21.5)
Income (ax Hability (0.9)
Deferred income 20 (28.8)
(56.3)
Net current liabilities (13.7)
Non-current liabilitics
Lease liabilities 13 (155.4)
Loans and borrowings 22 {159.6)
Provisions 23 (1.0)
Deferred tax liabilities 26 (36.2)
(352.2)
Net assets 92.0
Share capital 21 84.6
Share premium 34.5
Accumuiated losses {27.1)
Tetal equity 83.0

Approved by the Board and signed an its behalf by:

Director

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended

August 2022
Share capital Share Retained Total equity
Premium Earunings
Loss for the pericd ] (2713 (27.1}
Total comprehensive income {27.1) (27.1)
Mew share capital subscribed 84.6 34.5 _ - ERitA
At 31 Angust 2022 §4.6 M5 271 92.0
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Aspris Holdeo Limited
Registration Number: 13534635

Company Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Note 2022
£in
Assets
Non-turrent assets
investments in subsidiaries 16 118.1
Current assets
Trade and other veceivables 18 0.2
Cash and cash equivalent v 07
s
Total assets 1200
Current linbilities
‘Trade and oiher payables 24 (0.93
Net cuprent assets/(liabilities) -
Net assets 1ig.1
Share capital 21 84.6
Share premium -
Total equity 119.1

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from
presenting its own profit and loss account. The Company’s loss for the year was £1%,000.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behz!f by:

Trevor M Torringta
Director Director

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended August 2022

Share capital Share Retained Total cquity
Premium Larnings
Loss for the period - -
‘T'otal comprehensive income - -
New share capltal subseribed . 84.6 34.5 - 119.1
At 31 Aupust 2022 84.6 34.5 - 119.1
32
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Period ended 31 August 2022

Cash flows from opcrating activities
Loss for the period

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Prepreciation on right of use assels

Impafrment of goodwill

Loss on dispoesal of property plant and equipment
Finance income

FFinance costs

Share of loss of equity accounted investees
Income fax

Working capital adjustments
Increase in irade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Inerease in provisions

Decrease in deferred income

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Net cash flow from operating activitics

Cash flows firom investing activities

Interest received

Acquisitions of property plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment
Advances of loans to joint ventures

Acquisition of subsidiaries - net of cash acquired

Cash flows from finaneing activities

Interest paid

Proceeds [rom issue of ordinavy shares

Proceeds from external borrowing draw downs
Repayment of external borrowing

Repayment of loans advanced from former parent
Principal paid on lease liabilities

Interest paid on lease liabilities

Net tucrense in, and elosing cash and eash equivalents

Note

—
ND WD 0 Ly O

16
17

17

13

19

2022
£in

(27.1)

13.7
8.5
16.7
0.3
(.1
22.8
0.5
(0.3)

38.0

(6.4)
4.1
0.2

(0.1}

35.8

— (16}

34.2

0.1
{12.1)
1.0
(1.1
(123.7)

{135.8)

111.3)
119.1
158.6

(41.3)

90.1)

(4.8

(10.5)

119.7

18.1

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Aungust 2022

1. General information

The company is a private company [imited by shave capital, incorporated in England and Wales and domiciled in
United Kingdom, registration number 13534635. Aspris Holdeo Limited Group includes the Aspris Children’s
Services Abu Dhabi Branch.

These financial siatements were authorised for issue by the Board on 17 March 2023
2. Accounting policies
Statement of compliance

The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Finaswial Reporting Standards
and its interpretalions adopted by the UK ("UK adopted 1FRSs").

Summary of significant acconnting policies and key estimnates

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparalion of these financial statcments are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements arc prepaved in accordance with UK adopted international accounting
standards in conformity with the requiremcnts of the compunies act 2006 as applicabie to companies using IFRS.
The Company has elected to prepare its parent Company financial statements in accordance with UK generally
accepted accounting, principles (UK GAAP), including FRS 101

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost accounting rules.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and
elected not to present its own Statement of Comprehensive Income in these financial slatements.

Going eoncern

The Board reviews forecasts of the Group’s lquidity requitements based on a range of scerarics to ensure it hes
suffictent cash to meet operational and financial needs. These forecasts are underpinned by detailed and embedded
forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibility over both the near tenm and iong-term liquidity
requirements of the Group, to inform the Directors’ decision making on all key financial matters. The Directors
consider both short term and long-term forecasts for the business, ranging from rolling three-month daily liquidity
forecasting, annual budget and periodic intra year reforecasting processes, and longer term 3 year long range plans
for the Group. Each of these projects the [iquidity and covenant headroom for the Group,

The Group made a loss before tax of £27.4m for the period ended 31 August 2022, this loss in the current period
reflecis the non-cash impairment of goodwill (see note 15) of £19.7m and exceptional of £7.8m, excluding these
items the group made a loss of £0.1m and an operating profit of £23.1m. The Group is forecast to make an operaling
profit during the going concern period. The Group generates sufficient cash to cover ts liabilities and surplus
balanccs are held as cash reserves to invest in the Group and support the business in future periods, At 31 August
2022 the Group had debt of £165.0m due to its external lenders and {inance Jease linbilitles ef £160.5m. No loans
were due to our shareholders.

As part of their considerations the Divectors review a range of different scenarios, including a severe but plausible
downside scenario to assess the impact on both the liquidity and covenant headroom of the Group, sec note 3.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Baslis of consolidation

The Group financial statcments consolidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidlary undertakings
diawu up o 31 August 2022,

A subsidiary is an enlily controlled by the Company. Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain henefits from its activities,

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the income statement fron: the
cffective date of acquisilion or up 1o the effective date of disposal, s appropriate, Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by the
Group,

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for business combinations that result in the acquisition of
subsidiavies by the Group. ‘The cost of & business combination is measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issted and liabililies incued or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly atiributable
to the business combination. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilitics assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Any excess of the cost of the
business combination over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiabie assets, liabilities and
contingent liabililies recognised is recorded as goodwill.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries, which are related patties, ave eliminated in fufl.

Intra-group losses are also eliminated but may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated
financial statements,

Changes in accounting policy
The foilowing amendments are effective for the period beginning 28 July 2021
*  Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

None of the standards, interpretations and amendments sffective for the first time from 28 July 2021 have had a
material effect on the financial statements.

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments are not yet effect:

Amendment 10 1AS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a business”
1AS 16: PPE: Proceeds befors inlended use
IAS 37: Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract
Annual improvement cycle to IFRS (2018-2020 Cycle)
o JFRS 1: Subsidiary as a first time adopter
o IFRS9: fees in the ' 10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial [iabilitics
o IFRS 16: Lease incenlives amended example
+ 1AS 3, Definition of accounting estimates
» IAS 1: Disclosure initiative —~ accounting policies
»  Amendmenis to IAS 12 “Deferred tax relating to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction®

None of the standards, interpretations and amendments which are offective for periads beginning after 28 July 2021
and which have not been adopted early, are expected to have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Angust 2022
(continued)

Revenue Recognition
Recogrition

Revenue is recognised based upon the number of people per day to which we have provided a service, These volume
metrics arc recorded and combined with the applicable fee rate per person per service, to devive the total revenue to
be reeognised. There is limited judgemental input this process

Revenue is recognised as pecformance obligations are satisfled as conlrol of services is transferred to the customer,
The Group has determined that most of its performance obligations are satisfied over time as the client
simultaneously received and consuimes the benefits provided by the Group as the education or care services arc
rendered. Tn the circumstanees, revenue is recognised at the amount which the Group has the right te invoice, where
ihat amount corresponds divectly with the value to the custorner of the Group’s performance completed to date.

The principles in IFRS are applied to revenue recognition criteria using the following 5 step model:

1. Tdentify the contracts with the custamer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
5, Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its performance obligations

Fee qrrangements

Below are details of fee arrangements and how thesc are measured and recopnised, for revenue from the provision off
services:

Aspris delivers special education and care services to its service users in line with contractual agreements, which
clearly state the nature of the services to be provided over what time period, The main performance cbligations in
contracts consist of delivery of services to service uscrs. For all contracts the stage of completion and delivery ol
performance obligations are measured at the balance sheet date by reference to services delivered to service users at
that date.

Transaction price

To caleulate the transaction price of contracts rates are applied daily or by specific service provided o service users
as detailed in contractual agreements.

Paymen! ferms

Paymeni terms range from payment in advance of services delivered to within a range of specified days of receipt of
service or invoice, dependant on the specific circumstances and needs of the service users.

Tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except that a change
attributeble to an item of income or expense recognised as other comprehensive income is also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
{continued)

Property, plant amd equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated in the statement of financial position at cost, less any subsequent
accumulated deprecialion and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes directly altribuiable incremental costs incurred in their
acquisition and instatlation.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as o write off the eost of assets, other than land and properties under construction over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Asset class - Years depreciated over

Freehold buildings 50 years

Leaschold buildings The lease term

Fixtures and fittings 3 to 16 years

Motor vehicles The short of the lease term or 4 years _

Intangible asscts

Goedwill avising on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and conlingen! liabilities of the eniily recognised st
the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses, Goodwill is held in the currency of the acquired entily and revalved to the
closing rate at each reporting period date.

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation but is tested for impairment on at least an annual basis. The impairment test
compares the recoverable value of a cash generating unit (*CGU’), the value in uge of that CGU and the carrying
value of the intangible asset in accordance with IAS36. This assessment factors in the latest developments within
each CGU, including amongst other faclors, current trading, capacity and staffing constraints to assess an estimation
of the future cashflows and the determination of a discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Negative goodwilt arising on an acquisition is recognised directly in the income statement. On disposal of a
subsidiary ot a jointly controlled entify, the attributeble amount of gaodwill is included in the determiination of the
profit or loss recognised in the income statement on disposal.

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown at historical cost.

Trademarks, licences (including software) and customer-related intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)
Amortisation

Amortisation is provided on intangible assets so as to write off the cost, less aty estimated residual value, over their
expecied useful economic life as fotlows:

Asset class Years amortised vver
Customer coniracts 610 17 years

The amortisation periods ave based on expected customer churn rates and, where relevant, the length of fixed-term
customer conlracts

Valuation of investments

Investments in shbsidiaries held by the company are measured at cost less eny accumulated impairment in the
company’s statement of financial position.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily converlible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in valuc.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due fiom custamers for services performed in the ordinary course of business. [f
collection ts cxpected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets, 1f not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest immethod, iess provision for Impairment, A provision for the impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be abie to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the reeeivables.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or setvices that have been acquired in the ovdinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current Habilities if payment is duc within one year or
less (or in the normal opevating cycle of the business if longer), If not, they are presented as non-cutrent Habilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amorlised cost using
the effective interest method.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
{continued)

Borrewings

All borrowings are initially recorded at the fair value which is often the amount received, net of fransaction costs.
Borrowings arve subsequently carried al amortised cost, with (he difference between the proceeds, net of transaction
costs, and the amount due on redemption being recognised as & charge to the income slatement over the period of the
relevant borrowing.

Interest expense is recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as currend labilities untess the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the :
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences betwveen the cairying amounts of assets and liabiiities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tex bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all 1axable temporary differences, Deferred fax assels are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabililies are net recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition {other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilitles are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future, Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are cxpecied to reverse in the foresseable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred {ax liabilities and assets are measured at the 1ax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities,
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Exceptional items

Items that are both material and non- reoccurting and whose significance is sufficient to warrant separate disclosure
and identification within the consolidated financial information are referred to as exceptional items. ltems thal may
give rise to classification as cxceptional include but are note limited to, significant and material reorganisation and
restructuring programmes, re-financing and acquisition costs, Further details of exceptional items can be found in
note 10,

Provisions

Provisions arc recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resuit of a past event,
it is probakble that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the Directors® besi cstimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material,

Leases
Definition

A lease i5 a contract, or a part of a contract, thal conveys the right to use an asset or a physically distinct part of an
assel (“the underlying asset”) for a period of titne in exchange for consideration. Further, the conlract must convey
the right to the Group to control the asset or a physically distinet portion thereof. A contract is decined to convey the
right o control the underlying asset if, throughout the period of use, the Group has the right to;

+  Obtain substantially all the economic benefits from the use of the underlying asset, and;
s  Direct the use of the undetlying asset (e.g. direct how and for what purpose the asset is used)

Tnitial recognition and measurentent

The Group initially recognises a lease liabiiity for the obligation to meke lease payments and a right-of-usc asset for
the right to use the underlying asset for the lease term.

The leasc liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term, with the
discount rate determined by referencs to the rate inherent in the lease unless (as is lypically the case) this is not
readily determinable, it which case the Group's incremental borroswving rate on commencement of the lease is used.
The lease payments include fixed payments, purchase options at exercise price {(where payment {s reasonably
certain), expected amount of residua! value guaraniees, termination option penalties (where payment is considered
reasonably certain) and vaviable lease payments that depend on an index or rate. In such cases, the initial
measurement of the [ease liability assumes the variable element will remain unchanged throughout the lease term.
Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

The right-of-use assct is initially measured at the amount of the lease Habtlity, adjusted for lease prepayments, lease
incentives received, the Group's initial direct costs {e.g. commissions) and an estimate of restoration, removal and
dismantling costs.

Subsequelit measirement

Afier the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability by:

(a) Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;

(b} Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

(¢) Re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or o reflect revised in
substance fixed lease payments or on the occurrence of other specific events.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
{continued)

Lieases (continued)

Interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease term is the amount that produces a constant periodic rate
of interest an the remaining balance of the lease liability. Interest charges are presented separately as non-operating
costs, included in finance cost, in the income statement, unless the costs are included in the carrying amount of
another asset applying other appticable standards.

Vuriable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability, are included in aperating cxpenses in
the period ip which the event or condition that triggers them arises.

The related right-of-use assel is accounted for using the Cost model in IAS 16 and depreciated and charged in
accordance with the depreciation requirements of TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment as disclosed in the
accounting policy for Property, plant and equipment. Adjustments are made to the canying value of the right of use
asset where the Jease liability is re-measured in accordance with the above, Right of use assets are tested for
impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of assets as disclosed in the accounting policy in impairment.

Lease modifications

[fa lease is modificd, the modified coniract is evaluated to determine whether it is or contains  lease, If a lease
continues lo exist, the lease modification will resull in either a separate lease or a change in the accounting for the
existing lease,

The modification is accounted for as a separate [ease if both:

{a) The modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right 1o use one or more underlying assets; and
{b) The consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particutar
contract,

If both of these conditions are met, the lease modification results in two separate leases, the unmodified original
lease and a separate lease. The Group then accounts for these in line with the accounting policy for new leases.

If either of the conditions are not met, the modified lease is nol accounted for as a separate lease and the
consideration is alloceted to the contract and the lease liabitity is re-measured using the lease term of the modified
[ease and the discount rate as determined at the effective date of the modification.

For a modification that fully or partially decreases the scope of the lease {(e.p. reduces the square footage of leased
space), IFRS 16 requires a lessee fo decrease the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect partial or fuli
termination of the lease. Any difference belween those adjustments is recognised in profit or loss at the effective
date of the modification.

For all other lease modifications which are not accounted for as a separate lease, IFRS 16 requires the lessee to
recognise the amount of the re-measurement of the lease liability as an adiustment to the corresponding right-of-use
asset without affecting profit or Ioss,

Short term and low valne leases

The Group has made an accounting policy election, by class of underlying asset, not to recognise lease assets and
lease liabilitles for leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (i.e. short-term leases).

The Group has made an accounting policy election on a lease-by-lease basis, nol to recognise lease assets on leases
for which the underlying assel is of low value.

Lease payments on short term and [ow value leases are accounted for on a straight line bases over the term cof the
lease or other systematic basis if considered more appropriate. Short term and low vatue fease payments are included
in operating expenses in the income statement.
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Aspriz Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Share capital

Ovdinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash ot other
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equily instruments. If payment is deferred and
the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is ob a present value basis.

Defined contribution pension obligadion

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which fixed contithutions are paid into a separate entity and has
no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefils relating to employee service in the cutvent and prior periods,

Financial instruments
Initial recognition

Finaneial assets and financial liabilities comprise all assets and liabilities reflected in the statement of financial
position, excluding property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, deferred (ax assets, prepayments and deferred
tax liabilities.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Group becomes parly to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets arc initially recopnised at fair value. Financial liabilities ave initially recognised at fair valug,
representing the proceeds received net of preminms, discounts and transaction costs that are directly attributable 1o
the financial liability.

Purchases or sules of a financial assets under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time
frame established generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned are defined as a regular way
purchase or sale. All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as fair
value through profit ar loss (“FVTPIL.”) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sel} the financial assets or financial liahilitics, All regular way purchases and sales of other financial
assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the settlement date, i,e. the date on which the asset or liability is
received from or delivered (o the counterparty. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subscquent to initial measurement, financial assets and financial {iabilities are measured at either amortised cost or
fair value.

Classification and measurement

Finaneial instruments are classified at inception into one of the following categories, which then determine the
subsequent measurement methodology: -

Financial assets are classified into one of the following categories:-
s financial assets at amortised cost;
+ financial assets at fair value through the profit or loss (FVTPL); or
Financial liabilities are classified into one of the following two categories: -
+ financial liabilities at amortised cost; or
» financial liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss (FVTPL),
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the perviod ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Finaneial instruments (confinued)

The classification and the basis for measurement are subject to the Group’s business model for managing the
tnancia) assets and the contractual cash {low characteristics of the (inancial assets, as detailed below:-

Financial assels at amortlsed cost

A financial asse! is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
EvTPl.:

*  the assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contraciual

cash flows; and
s the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates Lo cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

If either of the shove twa criteria is not met, the financial assets are classified and measured at fair value through the
profit or oss (FVTPL).

If a financial asset meets the amortised cost eriteria, the Group may choose to designate the financial asset al
FVTPI.. Such an election is irrevocable and applicable ondy if the FVTPL classification significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency.

Financial assets at fair vafue through the prafit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets not otherwise classified above are classificd and measured as FVTPL.

Finaneial Fabilities at amortised cost
All fingncial liabilities, other than those classified as financial liabilities at FYTPL, arc measured at amortised cost
using the effective inlerest rate method,

Financial liabilities at fair vaiue through the profit or loss
Financial ligbilities not measured at amortised cost are classificd and measured at FVTPL, This classification includes
derivative liabilities.

Derecggnition

Financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset when;

s the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,

» it transfers the right 1o recelve the contrectual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the finuncial asset are transferred; or

*  the Group neither transfers nor retains substentially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it docs
not retain control of the financial assel.

On derecognition of a financia] asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised as a gain or loss in the profit or loss.

Any cumulative gain or loss recopnised in OCI in respect of equity invesiment securities designated as FVTOCI is
not recognised in profit or {oss on derecognition of such seourities, Any interest in transferred financial assets that
quelify for derecoguition that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate assel or [iability.
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Financial instruments (continued)

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its statement of financial position, but
retains either all or substantially all of risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them, In such cases,
the transferred assets are not derecognised.

When the Group derecognises Iranslerred financial assets in their entirety, but has continuing invoivement in them
then the entity should disclose for each type of continuing involvement at the reporting date:

{a) The catrying amount of the assets and liabilities that are recognised in the entity’s statement of
financia! position and represent the entity’s continuing Involvement in the derecognised financial
assets, and the line items in which those assets and liabilities are rceognised.

(b) The fair value of the assets und liabilities that represent the cntity’s continuing involvement in the
derecognised financial asscts;

(<} The amount that best represents the entity*s ntaximum exposure to loss from its continuing
involvement in the derecognised financial assets, and how the maximum exposure {o loss is
determined

{d) The undiscounted cash cutflows that would or may be required o repurchase the derecognised

financial assets or other amounts payable o the transferee for the transferred assets

Financial Habilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelicd, or expire.

Impairment of financial assets

Measurement gf Expected Credit 1.osses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit Josses (ECL) on financial instrarnents that are not
measured at FYTPL, namely trade and other reccivables.

Provisions for credit-irmpairment are recognised in the statement of income and are reflected in accumulzted
provision balances against each relevant financial instruments balance.

Lvidence that ihe financial asset is credit-impaired include the follewing;

= Significant financia! difticulties of the borrower or issuer;
e A breach of contract such as defauit or past due event;

¢ The restructuring of the loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

s Itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or
*  There is other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers or issners in the Group, or economic conditions that correlate with defauits in the Group.

For trade receivables, the Group applics the simplified approach, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Trade receivables are not subject to material or significant credit losses. Credit risk is not considered to be significant
given that over 90% of revenue is derived from publicly funded entities.
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Financial instruments {continued)

Financial inshruments - Rigk management

The Group is cxposed to financial yisks in the form of credit, interest and !iquidily risks which arise in the notmal
course of business, The primary financial risks that the Group is exposed (0 #re noted below, for further detail on these
financial risks please see notc 27,

The principal financia! instruments used by ihe Group, from which financial instrument risk arises, are as follows:

e Trade receivables
¢ Cash deposits
e Senior and revolving credit facilities conlaining a variable clement linked to Sterling Overnight Index

Average
Capital Management

The Group’s objective when managing its capital is to ensure thaf entitics ini the Group will be able to continue as &
going concern whilst maximising refurns for stakeholders (hrough the optimisation of debt and equity please see note

27 for the Group’s capital structure.
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3. Critical aceounting judgements and key sources of estimation

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of certain financial assets, lizbilities, income and cxpenses.

The vse of estimates and assumptions is principally limited to the determination of provisions for impainment and
the valuation of financial instruments as explained in more detail betow:

Provisions for inpairment

In determining impairment of financial assets, judgement is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows as well as an assessment of whether the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and incorporation of forward-looking information in the measurement of ECL,

Fair value of financlal assets and liabilities

Where the fair value of financial assets and liabilifies cannot be derived frum active markets, they are determined
using a varicty of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The input to these models is
derived from observable markets where available, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
determining assumptions used in the models. Changes in assumptions used in the models could affect the reported
fair vatue of financial assets and liabilities.

Going Concern

The Board reviews forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements based on a range of scenarios to ensuve it has
sufficient cash to meet operationel and financial needs, These forecasts are undetpinned by detaited and embedded
forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibility over both the neer term and long term liquidity
requirements of the Group, to inform the Directors decision making on all key financial matters, The Directors
consider both shout term and long term forecasts for the business, ranging from rolling three month daily liquidity
forecasting, annual budget and periodic intra year reforecasling processes, and longer term 3 year long range plans
for the Group. Each of these projects the liquidity and covenant headroom for the Group.

There are necessaty estimates and judgements in the directors’ assessment of going concern these are considered in
detail in the strategic repott.

In assessing the potential impact of a range of risk factors on the business the Dirvectors have considered the likely
impact on the Group of a range of risks specific to the relevant business sector, as well as the compound impact of
risk factors in the broader macro environment that have evolved since the balance sheet date.

In particular, a severe but plausible downside scenario is considered by the Directors in order to assess the likely
impact of multiple different adverse factors impacting the Group simultaneously, giving rise to a material adverse
impact on the Group’s profitability and liquidity during the going concern period. Specifically, the severe but
plausible dovwnside scenavio assumes:

*  Reduction in occupancy levels from base forecasts of an aggregate of approximately 2% for the going
cancermn periad.

*»  (Costinflation:

o Wage inflation — additional site-wide wage inflation of 1,0% beyond the Group’s planned wage
increases (which zlready reflect announced National Living Wage, ‘T'eacher’s Pay Scale, and
other intermnal increases)

o Non-Wage inflation - additional 1.0% cost inflation assumed beyond the Group’s base case,
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Critical accounting judgements and key sonrees of estimation (continued)

+ TFee Inflation — over and above the cost impacts the scenario considers a material shorifall in the
propartion of fee increases that can be successfully achieved.

« Inlerest rate increases — assumes a marked and sustained increase in interest rates, ant therefore the cash
flows required to service the Group’s debt. The scenario factors in Bank of England Base rates exceeding
5% by May 2023 and holding at this level for the remaining going concern period.

We do not consider that COVID- 19 will have a material impact on the cashflows of the Group in the goirg concern
period.

The revenue and cost impact of such a scenario would have a major negative impact on the Group's profilability for
the going concern period, With operating profit being adversely impacted by approximately 30% in the period.
Furthermore, in adepting a prudent approach, the Directors have considered this scenario before relevand mitigating
actions that the business could implement to limit the adverse impact, Before the inclusion of such mitigations the
Group continues to forecast sufficient liquidity and financial covenant heedroom.

Business Combinations

The Group undertook three business combinations during the petiod (note 17). In accordance with IFRE, the
purchase method of accounting has been used. The Directors determine and allocate the purchase price of acquired
businesses at the date of the business combination. The purchase method requires significant estimates and
judgments.

While Directors use their best estimates and assumptions as part of the purchase price allocation process to
accurately value assets acquired and lisbilities assumed at the date of acquisition, estimates and assumptions arc
inherently uncertain and subject to refinement. Examples of critical estimates in valuing certain assets we have
acquired include;

»  future expected cashflows arising from assels and liabilities,
+  the fair valug of infangible and tangible assets, and
s discount rates,

Useful Economig life of intangible assels

The Directors have determined the useful economic life of certain intangible assets acquired as part of business
combination. The amortisation periods are based on expected customer churm rates and, where relevant, the length of
fixed-term customer contracts.

Right of use assets and liabilities
The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions in which it operates, recognised in accordance with
TFRS16 {note 13).

In caleulating the asset/liability attached to severzl of the lease agreements the Graup has requiired use of an
Incremental Borrowing Rate (“IBR”). The IBR has considered the risk-free rate atiributable to the currency, location
and lease term of each property, adjusted to reflect the interest rates the Group would be able to achieve based upon
its existing financing arrangements.
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Critical acconnting judgements and key sources of estimation (continued)

The Directors have applied judgement to determine the lease lerm for contracis that include a renewal or break
option. Extension options and break clauses are included in a number of the Group’s lease agreements {o maximise
the flexibility in managing operational assets. In determining the lease term, the Directors have considered all facts,
circumstances and the exercise dates of such clauses. Extension options and break clauses are only reflected in the
iease term if there is reasonably ceriainty they will be exercised.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible fixed assels

The Directors must assess whether intangible assets have been impaired during the period, Factors taken inta
consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected future financial performance
of the asset and where il is a component of a larger cash generating unit, the viability, expected future performance
of that unit using a discounted cashilow model as at the period end and the assessed fair value of cach cash
generating unit. The key estimates and assumptions that feature in the impairment test is the selection of pre-tax
discount rate relative to the speeific risks of the cash-generating unit and the preparation of pre-tax cash [lows using
director approved forecasts with growth rates that represent the Directors’ best estimates. (note 15)
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4. Revenue

The analysis of the Group’s revenue for the periad is as follows:

2022
£m
Turnover 178.6
QOther revenue 0.6
179.2
The analysis of the revenue by geographic region is as follows:
2022
£m
UK based divisions 176.5
Middle Easi based divisions 2.7
179.2
5. Staff costs
The aggregate payroll costs (including directors’ remuneration) were as follows:
2022
£m
Wapes and salaries 91,4
Social security costs 8.0
Pension costs, defined contribution scheme 4.5
103.9

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including the Directors) during the period, analysed by

category was as follows:

Site and operational
Administration and suppori

2022
No.
2987
174
3,161
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(continued)
6. Operating loss

Axrived at after charging/f(crediting)
2022
£m
Depreciation expense 8.7
Depreciation on right of use asscis 8.5
Amorlisation expense 5.0
Expense on short term leases ] 0.9

7. Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fees of £0.5m were incurred by the Group during the period, all fees relate to the audit of the Group. There
were no fees incutred related to non-audit services.

8. Other gains and fosses

The Group’s other gains or losses for the period are as follows:

2022
£m
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment . 0.3
9. Tinance income and costs

2022
£m

Finance ineome
Interest on bank deposits A |
0.1

Finance costs

Interest on external borrowings 12.0
Interest on lease liabilities 10.8
128
Net finance costs 22.7
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1¢. Exceptional items

2022

£m

Acquisition costs related to business combinations 5.8
Aspris formation and reorganisation costs 1.3
Other transaction costs and charitable donations 0.7
7.8

Acquisition costs on business combinations relate to the acquisition of Aspris Children's Services Limited (£2.6m)
from the Priory Group, the acquisition of SC Fopco Limited (£3.1m), and the acquisition of Aspris {Arden) Limited
(£0.km).

Aspris formation and reorganisation costs relaie to other expenses arising on the formation of the Aspris business as
siandalone from the Priory Group and include marketing-related expenses associated with the new Aspris brand.

Reorpanisation costs ptimarily relate 1o the revision to redundancy costs associaled with exit of certain customer
contracts and the implementaticn of revised management organisational structures in the Group.

Other transaction cosis relate to the Group's assessment, and exccution, of other corporate and property related
transactions.

The Group elecled (o make a one-off contribution to UNICE¥F's Ukraine appeal during the period.

11, Taxation

Tax recognised in the income statement

2022
Current tax £m
Current tax on taxable income for the period 1.3
Deferred tax {note 26)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 1.6)
Tax eredited in the period (0.3)

The reasons for the difference between the actuel tax charge for the year and the standard rate of corporation tax
applied to the Josses for the year are as fotlows:-

2022

£m

Loss for the year (27.4)
Tax using the company's 1ax rate 19% (5.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 5.3
Tax rate changes {0.4)
Total tax credited in the pevied {0.3)
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Taxation (continue)

As a result of the Finance Bill 2021 the rules of income tax sre expected to inerease from 19% to 25% for the period
bepinning April 2023,

‘I'ax liabilities are recognised svhen, despite the Group's belief that its tax return positions are supportable, the
Directors believe it is more likely than not that a taxation authetity would accept its filing position,

The Directors believe that its accroals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open audit years based on its assessment
of many factors including past expetience and interpretations of tax law.

No material uncertain tax positions exist as at 31 August 2022, This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions

and may involve a series of complex judgements about future events. To the extent that the final tax outcome of
these matters is different than the determination is made.

12. Property plant and equipment

Froup
Furniture, Properties
Land and fittings amd Maotor under
buthlings equipment vehicles  consiruction Total
£m £ £m £1mn £m
Cost or valuation
Additions 2.3 6.5 0.1 32 12,1
Acquired through business
combinations 122.4 29.6 0.6 3.3 155.9
Disposals (L.0) 0.5) - (0.2) 1.7
Transfers 0.6 03 - ©.9) -
At 31 August 2022 143 35.9 0.7 54 1663
Depreciation
Charge for the period 1.9 6.7 0.1 - 8.7
Eliminated on disposal 0.2) (0.3) - - (0.5)
At31 Auguost 2022 o 1.7 6.4 0.1 e 8.2
Carrying amount
At 31 Aupust 2022 122.6 29.5 0.6 5.4 158.1

Under the terms of the Group’s external borrowings there is a fixed charge, in favour of the external lenders, over all
property aequired for a consideration of aver £0.75m. Please refer to note 22 for further information on the Group’s
external horrowings.
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13. Ripht of use assets and linbilities

Group
Assets
Property  Motor vehicles Total
£m £m £m
Cost er valuation
Acquived through business 150.8 24 153.2
combinations
Additions 30 05 35
Modifications 83 - 8.3
Disposals 0.1) {0.1) (0.2}
At 3] August 2022 162.0 2.8 164.8
Depreciation
Charge for the petiod 7.3 12 8.5
Eliminated on disposal - (0.1 0.1y
At 3] August 2022 7.3 1.1 8.4
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2022 1547 1.7 156.4
Liahilities
Property  Motor vehicles Total
£m £m £m
Acquired through business combinations 151.0 24 153.4
Additions 3.0 0.5 3.5
Modificalions 33 - 8.3
Disposals - - -
Interest 10,2 03 10.5
Lease payments (14.0) (1.3) (15.3)
Foreigh Exchange movements 041 - 0.1
158.6 | BY 160.5

At31 August 2022
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Right of usc assets and liabilities {continued)
Nature of leasiag activities

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions in which it operates, Some of these leases provide for
payments to increase each year by inflation or index rate movements. The Group has options 1o purchase or exiend
the leases of certain properties. As the excreising of such options is not deeined to be reasonably certain, such
renewal options are not taken into account when determining the right of use assels and liabilities. Leases of vehicles
comprise only fixed payments over lhe lease tern.

Lcase liabilities are duc as follows:

Maturity analysis £m
Year 1 15.5
Year2 15,1
Year 3 14.3
Yeatrd 13.9
Year 5 13.7
Qnwards — 2313
303.8
Less: unearnecd interest (143.3)
160.5

Analysed as:

Non-Current 1554
Current 3.1
160.5

Armounts recognised in profit and loss

An amount of £0.9m has been recognised it profit and loss in respect of properly leases that expired and were not
renewed, and for roliing lease agreements, Cash payments in respect of these leases amounted to £0.9m.

At 31 August 2022, the Group had ne commitments under these agreements in excess of a hyo-menth notice period.
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14. Intangible assets

Group

Caost or valuation

Acquired through business combinations
At 31 August 2022

Amortisation

Amortisation charge

{mpairment {note 15)

At 31 August 2022

Carrying amount

At 31 August 2022

(confinued)

Contractual

Goodwill customer
(Note 15} relationships Total
Em £m £in
693 988 1681
69.3 98.8 168.1
- 5.0 5.0
15.7 - 19.7
15.7 50 247
49.6 93.8 143.4

All Intangible Fixed Assets (“TFAs®} were identified on Purchase Price Allocation exercises (“PPA") exercises
carried out on behalf of management by an independent expert, at two points:

1. Acquisition of Priory Education Services Limited (“PESL” — subsequently rename Aspris Children’s
Services Limited) by Aspris Holdco Limited on 31 August 2021

2. Acquisition of SC Topeo Limited by Aspris Children’s Services Linited on 28 January 2022

3. Acquisition of Hollyblue Healthcare (Arden) Limited, laflerly renamed Asptis (Arden) Limited

All IFAs have been amortised in line with useful economic lives determined by management ai each relevant

acquisition dale.

In accordance with accounting standards, the Group undertakes an annual review of Geodwill and where other TFAs

where there are indicators of impairment.

55




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

15. Goodwill and impairment

Goodwill represenis the excess of the consideration over the fair value of the net assets acquired on the purchase of
the subsidiary companies, In accordance with IFRS, this balance is not amortised and is subject to annual impairment
reviews. Goodwill has been allocated to each cash-gencrating unit (“CGU”») based on Purchase price Allocation
(“PPA™) exercises:

1. Acquisition of Priory Education Services Limited (“PESL* — subsequently renamed Aspris Children’s
Services Limited) by Aspris Holdco Limited on 31 August 2021

2. Acquisition of SC Topco Limited by Aspris Children’s Services Limited on 28 January 2022

3. Acquisition of Hollyblue Healthcare (Arder) Limited, latterly renamed Aspris {(Arden) Limited

ACSL Sand-  Arden Total

Group castle

Group
£m £m £m £m
Goodyvill recognised during the period 21.0 47.7 0.6 69.3
Impairment recognised during the period - 19.n - (197
Goodwill 21.00 28.0 0.6 49,6

In accordance with nccounting standards, the Group undertakes an annual review of Goodwill,

In order to determine if there has been any impairment of Goodwill, management prepared calculalions of the
recoverable amount for cach CGUL For both ACSL Group and the Sandcastle Care Group the recoverable value is
determined by the forecast present value of future cash flows of the CGU based on S-year projections ending in a
terminal growth rate assumption. Forecasts are based on the assumptions set out below:

Key Assumptions ACSL Group Sandeastle Care
Discount Rate 11.0% 10.3%
Terminal Growth Rate 2.0% 1.0%
Operating Margin 10.3% 20.6%

ACSL Group

Since the date of acquisition, the ACSL Group has maintained performance in line with the budgeted targets set for
the business. Operational challenges, particulatly regarding consirainls on the availability of staff have been
effectively managed, without a material adverse impact on ACSL’s prefiiability for the period.

Forecast for FY23 is based on budget prepared by management and approved by the Board, with appropriate
adjustments for trading at 31 August 2022, Operating profit is forecast to increase at 2% CAGR between FY24 and
FY27. Replacement capex to mainiain the cstate has also been assumed, on par with FY23 budgelted levels.

Regarding the Group’s acquisition of 100% of the share capital of ACSL Group on 31 August 2021 the Group assessed
the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired to be £41.2m, compared to the total consideration of £62.2m, giving
rise {o £21.0m intangible goodwill being recognised by the Group. As at 31 August 2022 Management assessed the
recoverable amount for ACSL Group to be £241.1m, £19.5m grealer than the carrying value, and thus no impairment
to the Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the period.
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Goodwill and impairment {continued)

Sandcastle Care Group

Since the date of acquisition, the Sandeastle Care business has maintained a high quality rating performance of over
90% posl-acquisition, bul the business has been impacted by operational challenges that have reduced both its
available capacity and ulilisation, Whilst aspects of these challenges are not thought o be permanent, they have
impacted the overall assessment of the presen( value of future cashflows from the business. These challenges include
staffing constraints that have fed to reduced total oceupancy and an adverse impact on operating margins compared to
the budgeted targets for the business,

Forccast for FY23 is based on the budget prepared by management and approved by the Board, with appropriate
adjusiments for trading at 31 August 2022, Operating profit is forecast lo increase at 1% CAGR between FY24 and
I¥27. Replacement capex to mainiain the estale has also been assumed, on par with FY23 budgeted levels,

Regarding the Group’s acquisition of 100% of the share capita! of SC TopCo Limited on 28 January 2022 the Group
assessed the falr value of identifiable net assets acquired to be £14.0m, compared to the total consideration of £61.7m,
giving rise to £47.7m iniangible goodwill being recognised by the Group.

Management assessed the recoverable amount for Sandeastle Care Group to be £77.6m, £19.7m [ower than the
carrying value of the CGU on a comparable basis at balance sheet date, and as such have [mipaired the goodwill
associated with the CGU by 1he shortfall in carrying value versus the recoverable amount.

Impairment sensitivities for ACSL Group and Sandeastle Care Gronp

I any one of the following assumptions were amended by 1 percentage point, the impact on the impairment value
would be as follows:

Sensitivities

Aspris

Discount Rate (1% increase)

Reduction to cartying value
from £241,1m to £221.2m

Reduction to carrying value
from £77.6m to £71.6m

Terminal Growth Rate {1% reduction)

Reduction to canying value
from £241.1m to £220.7m

Reduction to carrying value
from £77.6m to £71.5m

Operating Margin (1% reduction beyond FY27)

Reduction to carying value
from £241.1m to £223.0m

Reduction to carrying value
from £77.6m ta £74.8m

Aspris (Arden) Limited

The assets held by Aspris (Arden) Limited consist of land and buildings, these were at fair value on acquisition,
there are no subsequent indicators of impaitment to the assets of Aspris (Arden) Limited. Since the acquisition of
Arden the business has been performing in line with expeetations, and thus no impairment to the Goodwill arising

on acquisition is required in the period.
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16. Investments - Group Subsidiaries

Details of the group subsidiaries as at 31 August 2022 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Aspris Midee Limited

Aspris Bideo Limited

Aspris Children’s Services Limited
Coxlease School Limited

Castlecare Group Limited

Progress Care and Education Limited
Speciality Care Limited

Strathmore College Limited

Aspris (Thetford 1) Limited

Aspris New Education Services Limited
Castlecare Holdings limited

Quantum Care UX Limited
Specialily Care (Rest Hornes) Lintited
Speciality Cave (Medicare) [Limited

Specialised Courses Offering Purposeful
Education Limited

Aspris (Thetford 2) Limited
Dunhall Property Limited
Castle Homes Cure Limited
Castlecare Cymru Limited
Castle Homes Limited
Rotheare Estates Limited

Castlecare Education Limited

{continued)

Principal activity

Holding company
Helding company

Specialist education services

Non trading

Non {rading
Children’s homes
Holding company
Care delivery
Non trading
Education

Non trading
Children’s care homes
Care delivery
Holding company
Carc delivery

Mon trading
Non trading
Children’s care homes
Children’s care homes
Children’s care homes

Property company

Specialist education services
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Registered office

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdem
United Kingdem
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Uniled Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Proportion of
ownership
interest and
voting rights

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
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Investments (continued)

Thetford Trustee LLP Non rading United Kingdom 100%
Aspris (Troup House) Limited * Edugation United Kingdom 100%
Aspire Scotland Holdings Limited® Helding company United Kingdom 100%
Aspire Scotland Limited* Children’s care and education United Kingdom 100%
Galaxy I Limited* Children’s care and education United Kingdom 100%
Galaxy UK Leisure Limited* Children’s care and education  United Kingdom 100%
SC Topco Limited** Holding company Tnited Kingdom 100%
3C Bidco Limited** Holding company United Kingdom 100%
Natabra Propertics Limited** Property company United Kingdom 100%
Sandeastle Care Holdings Limited** Holding company United Kingdom 100%
Sandcastie Care Limited** Children’s care homes United Kingdom 100%
Pontixol UK Limited®* Property company Uniled Kingdom 100%
Aspris (Arden} Limited Property company United Kingdom 100%
Prioty Healthcare LLC*** Healthcare UAE 0%

Unless stated otherwise the regisiered address of cach subsidiary is: The Forge, Church Street West, Woking,
Surrey, England, GU21 6HT

*Company registered address is: 38-40 Mansion house Road, Glasgow, G+41 3DW

**Company registered address is: 46 Whitegate Drive, Blackpool, Lancashire, England, ¥Y1 2DQ

*** Agpris Group controls Priory Healtheare LLC through a combination of contractual agreermers and the ability to direet the financial and
operatipnal managemeni of the entity

Asptis Holdco Limited has given statufory guarantees against all the oulstanding liabilities of all wholly owned
subsidiaries as at 31 August 2022. This thereby allowed dormant subsidiaries to be exempt from the requirement to
prepare and file annual accounts under section 394 A or the Companies Act, and non-dormant subsidiaries to be
exempt from the annual audit requirement under Section 478A of the Companies Act, for the period ended 31
August 2022,

The Group has contro] of a 60% interest in Saudi Healthcare LLC {“SH¢c™), an entity registered in XSA, which
operates a Wellbeing Centre in Riyadh. The operation, although important to management’s future plans and
siralegy in the region, is not seen as malerial in the context of these Financial Statements.

During the period the Group loaned £1.1m to SHe, in addition o the £0.Im interest in share capital and £0.3m.
acquired on business combination. SHedid not trade duting the period and incurred losses of £0.9m, the Group’s
share of these losses £0.5m have been recognised in operaling costs.

investments - Company

Group

2022

Investments made during period - Cost £m
Aspris Mideo Limited 119.1
At 31 August 2022 - B 119.1
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17. Business combinailons

Acquisition of subsidiary — Aspris Children’s Services Limited and subsidiaries

Onr 31 August 2021, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Priory Education Services Limited
(latterly named Aspris Children’s Services Limited), obtaining control, The principal activity of Aspris Children’s
Services Limited (“*ACSL") is provision of specialist schools, colleges, chiklren’s homes and fostering. ACSL was
acquired by Aspris Bidco Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Asptis Holdco Limited. This transaction was
undertaken to purchase the children’s services and Middle East operations of the Priory Group, of which ACSL and

its subsidiaries were proviously members of.

‘The 100% shareholding in ACSL was obtained for cash consideration of £62.2m.

As part of {he acquisition, loans totalling £90.1m between ACSL and its subsidiarics, and Priory Group were settled.

‘The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and labilities assumed are as set cut in the

table below:

Tgir Ve
£am Vol adjustments  VFVOILE
Assets and liabilitles acquired
Property, plant and equipment 134.2 5.0 139.2
Right of use assets 153.2 (0.2) 153.0
Inlangible assets 272 152 424
Trade and other reccivables 13.7 ot 13.8
Cash and cash equivalent 1.9 - 19
Lease liabilities {153.2) - (153.2)
Trade and other payables (134.0}) - {134.0)
Provisions {0.8) - (0.8)
Deferred tax liabilities (3.8) (17.3) 2LN
Total identifiable assels 384 2.8 41.2
Goodwill - P 210
Total consideration 62.2
Satisfied by:
Cash 62,2
Cash flow analysis:
Cash consideration 62.2
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (1.9)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 60.3
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Business combinations (continued)

The fair value of the financial asscis includes receivables with a fair value of £12,2m and a gross contractual value
of £12.6m. The best estimmte ul acquisition dale of the conlractual cush flows not (o be collected are £0.4m.

The goodwill of £21m arising from {he acquisition consisis of the presence of certain intangible assets, which do not
qualify for separate recognition, such as;

+  Assembled workforee of ACSL, including both the UK and Middic East workforce

«  Aspris® abilily lo extend the existing relationships acquired with Local Authorities beyond the useful
economic life anticipated at initial acquisition

*  Development of new relationships in the Middle East

None of the goodwill is expected 1o be deductible fot income tax purposes.
Acquisition related costs of £2.5m arose as a result of (he transaction.
Acquisition of subsidiary - SC Taepce Limited and subsidiaries

On 28 January 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of SC Topeo Limited (*Sandeastic Care’),
oblaining control. The prineipal activity of Sandeastle Care is the provision of therapeulic care homes for children.
Sandcastle Care was gcquired {o achieve the creation ol a consolidated business in the Waterland group that is
focused on providing children's service. The transaction provides Aspris with greater coverage in (he Northwest of
England, where Sandcastle Cares® properties are primarily located.
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Business combinations (continued)

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the

table below:

£m Book Fair value TFair
Value adjustments value
Assets and liablities acquired
Property, plant and equipment 24.4 (13.2) 112
Right ol usc assets 0.2 - 0.2
Intanpible assety 12.0 44.4 56.4
Trade and other receivables 3.8 - 3.8
Cash and cash equivalent 3.6 - 3.6
Lease linbilities 0.2) - 0.2)
‘Trade and other payables 2.5 - (2.5)
Income tax lability (L1 - (L.1)
Loans and borravings (41.3) - (41.3)
Deferred tax liabilities (0.2) (15.9) (16.1)
Total identifiable assels (13) 153 .0
Goodwill - - 4717
Total convideration 61.7
Satisfied by:
Cash 61.7
Cash flow analysis:
Cash consideration 61.7
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (3.6)
58.1

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

The fair value of the financial assets includes receivables with a fair value of £3.4m and 4 gross conlractual value of

£3.4m.

The goodwill of £47.7m arising from the acquisition consists of the presence of certain intangible assets, which do

not qualify for separate recognition, such as;

*  Assembled workforce of Sandcastle Care.

+  Sandcastle Care’s ability to extend the existing relationships acquired with Local Authorities beyond the

useful economio life anticipated at initiat acquisition.

None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for corporation tax purposes.

Acquisition related costs of £3. m arose as a result of the {ransaction.
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Acquisition of subsidiavy — Aspris (Arden) Limited

On 31 March 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Hollyblue Healthcare {(Arden) Limited,
latterly renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited on obtaining control. Its principal aclivity is a property lessor. The
purchase of Hollyblue Healtheare (Arden} Limited enabled the acquisition of the freehold interests in properties
previousfy leased to the Group. This included propertics that had previously formed part of the Priory Group’s
residential adult care division. Subsequent to the purchase of Hollyblue {Arden) Limited such properties were
disposed of by the Aspris Group to the Priory Group at fair value.

‘I'he amounis recognised in respect of the identifinble assets acquired and liabilities assumed ave as set out in the
luble belovy:

£ Book Value | yn e valne
Assets and liabikities acquired

Property, plant and equipment 5.5 - 55
Trade and other payables 0.1} - {0.1)
[ncome tax liability 0.1} - {0.1)
Deferred tax liabilities - 0.6) {0.6)
Total identifiable assets 53 0.6) 4.7
Goodwill - - 0.6
Total consideration 53
Satisfied by:

Cash 53
Cash flow analysis:

Cash consideration 53
Less: cash and cash cquivalent balances acquired -
Net cash oulflow arising on acquisition 5.3

Mone of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for corporation tax purposes.

Acquisition related costs of £0.1m avose as a result of lhe {ransaction,
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Impact of the acquirees ou amounts veported in the statement of comprehensive income

‘The amounts of revenue and profit or loss of the acquirees since acquisition date included in the consolidated

statement of income for the reporting period is as follows:

Aspris  Sanderstic  Arden

£m £m £m

Revenue 162.7 16.5 0.0

Operating cost {146.9) (15.5) 0.3

Operating profit before impairment and other losses and exceplicnal 21.8 1.0 0.3
costs

Impairment and other [osses and exceptional costs (8.0) (19.8) 0.0

Operating profit 13.8 (18.8) 0.3

The revenue and profit or loss of the combined entity for the current reporting period as through the acquisition date
for all business combinations that oceurred during the year had been at the beginning of the 12 month trading period

starting 1 Septetsber 2021, is as follows:

£m
Revenue 191.0
Operating cost {717
Operating profit before impatrment and other losses and exceptional 193
costs
[mpairmeni and other losses and exceptional costs (28.3)
Operating profit 9.0
18. Trade and other receivables
Group Company
31 August 31 August
2022 2022
Current £m £m
Trade receivables 19,7 -
Provision for impairment of trade receivables (0.1) -
Net ¢rade receivables 19.6 -
Accrued income 0.4 -
Prepayments 1.7 -
Loans receivable from joint venture (notc 28) 1.0 -
Other receivables 1.8 0.2
24.5 0.2

All cuirent receivables are due within 1 year of balance sheet date. None of these are subject to material or significant
credit losses, Credil risk is not considered to be significant given that over 90% of reverue is derived from publicly

funded entities.

Amounts receivable from joint venture ave not subject to inferest and are repayable on demand.
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19, Cash and cash equivalents
Group  Company
2022 2022
£ £m
Cash at bank - 18.1 0.7

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and at bank. Cash at bank is held with banks or financial
institution counterparties which are investment grade rated. Management do not expect any losses from non-
performance of counterparties.

20, Deferred income

Gronp

2022

£m

Acquired through business combination 28.9
Deferred during the year 28.8
Regognised during the year (289
28.8

Deferred income is in respect of services invoiced in advance of delivery and is relensed as services ave delivered,

21, Issued capital and reserves

Alloited, called up and fully paid sliares

2022 2022

No. £000

A Ovdinary shares of £1 each 82,851,341 82,851
B Ordinary shares of £1 cach 1,782,603 1,783
C Ordinary shares of £1 vach 1,232,266 12
85,866,210 84,646
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Issued capital and rescrves {continued)
New shares alloffed

Class No. Consideration
£000
A Ordinavy shares of £1 each’ 82,851,341 116,861
B Ordinary shares of £1 cach? 1,782,603 2,223
C Ordinary shares of £1 each? 1,232,266 36
85,866,210 119,120

! A Ordinary shares of £1 each have full voting and pryments of dividend cights, right to disteibutions alongside 11 Ordinary shareholders in
priority 1o C Ordinary shareholder, subject to a threshold. Rights to distributions once the threshold has been surpassed alongside the B Ordinary
sharcholders and C Ocdinary sharcholders.

! B Ordinary shares of £1 each have full voling and paymenis of dividend rights, right Lo disisibutions alengside A Qrdinary shareholders in
priority to C Ordinary sharehalder, subject to a threshold. Rights to distributions once the threshold has been surpassed alongside the A Ordinary
sharcholders and C Ordinary shareholders.

*C Ordinary shares of £1 each have no voling rights. C Qrdinary shares have rights to dividends and distributions once the threshold has been
surpassed alongside the A and B Ordinary shareholders.

22. Loans and borrowings

Group

2022

Non-curyent loans and horrowings fm
Externai loens 165.0
Capitalised debt fees 5.4)
External borrowings 159.6

The Group entered into a senior term and revolving facility agreement on 27 August 2021 to facilitate the
aequisition of Sandeastle Care and future acquisitions. As at the end of the period the drawn senior facilities of
£165.0m are secured over the Group’s assets and carry inferest at a variable margin over the applicable SONIA rate.
The loans are repayable 7 years from the date of completion of the acquisition of ACSL.

External borrowings are recognised at fair value nct of transaction costs that are directly attributable to the credit
facilities. At the balance sheet date this was £5.4m.

The Group’s Loan facilities are subject to a single financial covenant test which is assessed quarterly. This covenant
assesses the total gross Leverage of the Group as a ratio to proforma LTM EBITDA of the consolidated group at
each quarterly test date. At the balance sheet date the covenant threshold was 7.4x, as at 31 August 2022 the ratio
level was materially below this threshold at a level of 4.9x. This equates to £11.6m of headroom expressed in terms
of proforma LTM EBITDA.

As at 31 August 2022 the Group had letters of credit in place amounting fo £2 3, This athount is ringfenced within
the Group’s total revolving credit facility of £22m for this purpose, with no other amounts drawn under this facility
as at the balance sheet date. These letters issued by the Group’s prineipal bankers to the Group’s insurers, an
employee pension scheme, and to support credit granted under supplier contracts.

66



Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

(continued)
23, Provisions

Legal
provision
2022
£m
Acquired through business combination 0.8
Charged in income statement 04
Used during year 0.2y
_ 10

24, Trade and other payables
Group  Company
2022 2022
£m £m
Trade payables 3.1 -
Actrued expenses 1.7 -
Amgunts due to related parties - 0.9
Social security and other taxes 2.3 -
Other payables o 44 -
21.5 0.9

Other payables consist of credit balances, funds held on behalf of ADEK for the operation and investment of the
school operated by the Group and savings held on behalf of young persons.

25. Pension

The Group operates defined contributicn pension schenes. The pension cost charge for the period represents
contyibutions payable by the Group to the scheme and amounted fo £4.5m

26. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 19%, The
increase in corporation lax to 25% is expected 1o be effective from April 2023, This new rate will be applied to
deferred tax balances which are expected to reverse ss at 1 September 2022.

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of all temporary differcnces giving rise to deferred tax assets
where the Direciors believe it is probable that these assets will be recovered,

The movements in deferred tax assets and lighilities {prior to the cffsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction
as permitted by [AS 12) during the period are shown below,
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Deferred tax (continued)

Details of the deferred tax liability, amounts recognised in the profit or loss and amounts recognised in other
comprehensive income are as follows:

Recopnised in -~ Recognised in Recognised in Total
business income other 31 August
combinations comprehensive 2022

(Nale 17) income
Intangible asset differcnees 23.8 (1.3 - 2.5
Tangible asset differences 14.0 (0.3) - 13.7
37.8 (1.6) - 36.2

Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respeet of capital tax losses carried forward in the UK totalling £2.4m
as there is insufficient evidence as to their recovesability.

27. Financial instrunients

Financial assets and linbilities

Financial assets and financial liabilitics comprise all assets and liabilities reflected in the statement of financial
position, excluding property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, deferred tax assets, prepayments and deferréd
tax liabilities.

Group Company
2022 2022
Financial asscts £m £m
Investmenits in subsidiaties - 119.1
‘Trade and other receivables 22.8 02
Cash and cash equivalent 18.1 0.7
40.9 1200

Financial liabilities
‘Trade and other payables 215 0.9
Income tax lability 0.9 -
Deferred income 28.8 -
Lease liabilities 160.5 -
Loans and borrowings 159.6 -
Trovisions 1.0 -
372.3 0.9

There is no difference between the canrying value of financial instruments and their faic value, The Group has no
financial instruments that are measured at fzir value.

The Group does not requive collateral in respect of financial assets.
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Financial instroments (conlinwed)

Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks in the form of credit, interest and liquidity risks which arise in the normal
course of business. The primary financial risks that the Group is exposed {o are detailed below:

Credit risk - Cash deposits and Trade receivables
Financial instruments which poientially expose the Group Lo credit risk consist primarily of cash and trade receivables.

Cush is only deposited with major financial institutions that satisy certain credit criteria. Credit risk in relation fo
trade receivables is not considered to be significant given that the vast majority of revenue is derived from publicly
finded education and care services. The Group provides credit to customers in the normal coursc of business and the
balance sheet is nef of allowances of £0.1in for doubtful receivables. The Group measures those allowances at an
amount egual to the lifetime expected credit losses using both quantitative and qualitalive information and analysis
based on the Group's historical experience and forward-locking information.

Allowances against doubtful debts are recognised against trade receivables based on estimated irrecoverable amounts,
determined by reference {o past experience of the counterparty. The majority of the Group’s allowance for doubtfut
debis rclales to specific trade receivables that are not considered to be recoverable, and management only considers it
approptiate {o create a collective provision based on the age of the trade receivable in respect of certain types of trade
recefvables.

The aging of trade receivables at 31 August is as follows:

£m

Current 4.9
30-60 days 14.0
60150 days 0.5
150 days + 0.3
19.7

The Direclors consider that the carrying amount of irade and other receivables is approximately equal to their fair
value.

Trade receivables at least 60 days past due for which no loss aHlowance has been made at 31 December is £0.7m.

Further to the credit risks described on cash and trade receivables the Group does not have any significant credit risk
exposire to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics, The Group defines
counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related entities.

There is no concern over the eredit quality of amounts past due bul for which no loss ailowances has been recognised
since the risk is spread aver a number of untelated counterparties which include central and local Government. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of recelvable mentioned
above and cash held by the Group.
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Financial rislk management (continued)

Interest rate visle— Sendor and Revolving credit facilities containing a vartable elfement linked (o Sterfing Gvernight
Index Average

The Group is financed by a combination of Senior and Revolving external credit facilities. The facilities are
denominated in pounds and are borrowed with interest at & variable margin over the applicable SONIA rate. Senior
loans ave repayable on 31 August 2028, and Revolving facilities are repayable on 31 August 2026.

In addition to assessments required by macro-economic events, the Group monitors its near term inlerest rate exposure
on a monthly basis, and longer term exposure on a bi-annual basis. This includes the review of the options available
to it for the hedging of interest rate risk, but cutrently does not have a hedged component to the interest burden on its
external debt. Tn light of prevailing market conditions, and the high cost of hedping instruments, the Directors believe
the Group has sufficient capacity to address the tisk of interest rate rises.

Based on modelling performed, a 100 basis point shift in SONIA rates would have a £1.65m increase ot decrense on
interest payments due on the Group’s external debt. A 350 basis point shift {(being the maximum likely change in
interest rates over the year from the period end) would have an impact of £5.8m on interest payments due on the
Group’s external debt.

Tiquidity risk

The Group prepares both annual and short-term cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated
projects. Borrowing facilitics are utilised as necessary to finance requirements. The Group has sufficient available
bank facilities and cash flows from profits to fund current commitments,

The following table shows the contractual cash flow maturities for financial liabilities:

Total  0-1 years 2-Syears 5+ years

‘Irade and other payables 216 21.6
Borrowings 165.0 165.0
Lease liabilities 303.8 15.5 570 231.3

Fareign currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s operations are in the UK and as such foreign currency risk is not deemed significant,
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Capital Risl Management

The Group’s objective when managing its capital is to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern whilst maximising returns for stakeholders (hrough the oplimisation of debt and equity. The Group’s
capital structure is as follows:

2012
£m
Cash 18.1
Borrowings! (165.0)
Lease liabilities {160.5)
Equity . 592.0
1. Excluding accrued interest and capitalised debt fees
Analysis of net debt
Business Cash Other
Combinations flow Interest movement?
£m £m £m £m fm
Cash 5.5 12.6 - - 18.1
_Borrowings' , {41.3) (123.7) - - {165.0}
Net Debt {excluding (35.8) (111.1) - - (146.9)
_Lease liabilities)
_ Leasc liabilitics (153.4) 15.3 (10.5} (119 {160.5)
Net Debt (193.0) (92.0) (10.5) (11.9) {307.4)

t Excluding accrued interest and capitalised debt fees of £5.4m
2 Relates 10 non-cash imoverents in lease liabilities - see note 13 for details

28. Related parties

Ultimate parent and confrelling party

The Company’s immediate parent is Standbyco 35 B.V

The uliimate parent is Waterland Private Equity Investments B.V

The uliimate controlling party is Waterland Private Equity Investments B.V

Aspris Holdco Limited is the smallest and larpest company for which consolidated financial statements are prepared
for public use,
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Related parties (confinued)

Balances and bransactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been efiminated
on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.

The Group is owed £§.4m from Saudi Healtheare LLC, a related parly as a joint venture investment which is equity
accounted for in these sta{ements, there is no interest charge, and this balance is repayable on demand. Held against
this veceivable is a provision of £0.4m for the Group's shave of the initial losses incwred over the investment anrount
made in Saudi Healthcare LLC. The net of the amounts owed of £1.0m is detailed in note 18.

‘The Group paid & management charge of £30,000 to WPEF VIIT Holding Co#iperaticf W.A, a relaied parly through
comman control.

Prior to the acquisition of Aspris Group (note 17) Priory Education Services Limited (“PESL™) was a patt of the Priory
Group. At the lime of the transaction Priory Group was a related party. Whilst the Group’s operations were largely
autonomous from those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris wvas the recipient of central support services provided to it
by the Priory Group. These services continued under a trausitional services arrangement agreed al the time of the
Group’s acquisition of PESL. This transitional agreement provided for back office support, including use of systems
and seftware, human resources support, estates and aspects of financial reporting assistance. This transilional stage
included the iraplementation of Aspris® own standajone systems and support infrastracture, the process of which was
completed by 30th November 2022, with all services received under this transitional arrangement ceased to be
provided from that date,

©On 28 January 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capitat of SC Topeo Limited (note 17), obtaining
control. 8C Topeo Limited was a related party by the nature of common ownership. One of the principal purpeses of
the acquisition was to achieve the creation of a consolidated business in the Waterland group that is focused on
providing children's service.

During the period an amount of £0.4m was advanced to direclors at an interest rate cqual to the HMRC official rate
of interest, on a term concutrent with the period with which the Directors remain shareholders in the Group. Iaterest
is paid by the Directors annually and early repayment of any portion of the outstanding balance is permitted at any
time. During the period repayments of £0.2m were made, with the remaining £0.2m outstanding at the period end
being included in other receivables (note 18)
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Key management personnel

Key management personnel arc those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
conirolling the activities of the Group.

2022
£000
Directors’ emolumenis 1,926
Directors’ post-employment benefits ) 8

"Lotal emoluments for the highest paid director were £1,153,000, this included a one-offl non-recurring reward of
£305,000 relating to the cxceptionally high level of corporate transactions and reorganisation activity successfully
completed during the period. The value of the Company*s contributions paid o a defined contribution pension
scheme in respect of the highest paid director amounted to £4,400,

The number of Directors to whom retirement benefits are accrued under money purchase pension schenes is 2.

29. Events after reporiing date
Acquisition of BHIS Holdings Limited

Follewing the close of the reporting period, and consistent with the Group strategy of expanding its specialist
education divisien, the Group completed the acquisition of a specialist education provider in the UK, BHIS
Holdings Limited, on { March 2023,

The acquired business, and its wholly owned subsidiaries, provide specialist education for up te approximately 100
primary and secondary school aged young people in the Easl of England.

To support this acquisition, and the Group’s broader growth abjectives, the Group entered insc an extension of its
available external debt facilities with its existing lenders. This new growth facility was agreed and effective from §
February 2023. These facilities provide an additional £25m of committed avaifable debt capacity to suppout the
growth projects of the Group.

1n addition, as part of the ebove acquisition the Group issued addilional equity capita! to its sharcholders in March
2023, with the above acquisition being funded through a combination of a partial drawdoven of the new growth debt
facility and this new equity capital raise.
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